




INTRODUCTION

Markets are harsh on companies

that are overly dependent on the last

generation of product or services

or are too early with the next

generation We have been adept

at renewing our competitive edge by

anticipating new technologies

and prudently investing to bring

them to market





INFLIGHT

ENTERTAINMENT

ndMduazed true broadband for

every seats More bandwidth enables

more passengers to connect

at once using their own devices

Its been possible before but never

economicaL untiI now









SATELLITE

BROADBAND

for households without access

to terrestrial broadband and

to compete for customers at the

edges of terrestrial networks

much more compelling value









ANTENNAS

Our experience and extensive

installed base provide clear cost

technoogy and business advantage

for network and satellite operator









SITUATIONAL

AWARENESS

Our products ai

form the backbone of ong-hauI

networks securely retrieve

high-speed ISR data and deliver

it to personnel from top to

bottom in the military hierarchy

middle
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ACHIEVEMENT

From day one the ViaSat

environment has been business

oriented but with the attractive

attributes of the best universities

Co-workers who are like-minded

yet independent Personal freedom

and responsibility Focused on

competition and winning With

challenging work and great rewards
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

COMPANY OVERVIEW
We are leading provider of advanced satellite and wireless communications and secure networking systems products and

services We have leveraged our success developing complex satellite communication systems and equipment for the U.S

government and select commercial customers to develop end-to-end satellite network solutions for wide array of applica

tions and customers Our product and systems offerings are often linked through common underlying technologies

customer applications and market relationships We believe that our portfolio of products combined with our ability to

effectively cross-deploy technologies between government and commercial segments and across different geographic

markets provides us with strong foundation to sustain and enhance our leadership in advanced communications and

networking technologies Our customers including the U.S government leading aerospace and defense prime contractors

network integrators and communications service providers rely on our solutions to meet their complex communications

and networking requirements In addition following our acquisition of WildBlue we are leading provider of satellite

broadband internet services in the United States

ViaSat operates in three segments government systems commercial networks and satellite services

GOVERNMENT SYSTEMS

Our government systems segment develops and produces network-centric 10-based secure government communications

systems products and solutions which are designed to enable the collection and dissemination of secure real-fime digital

information between command centers communications nodes and air detense systems Customers of our government

systems segment include tactical armed forces public safety first-responders and remote government employees

The primary products and services of our government systems segment include

Government satellite communication systems including an array ot portable and fixed broadband modems terminals

network access control systems and antenna systems using range of satellite frequency bands for line-nt-sight and

beyond-line-of-sight lSR and C2 missions satellite networking services as well as products designed for manpacks

aircraft UAV5 seagoing vessels ground mobile vehicles and fixed applications

Information assurance products that enable military and government users to communicate information securely over

networks and that secure data stored on computers and storage devices

Tactical data links including MIDS terminals for military fighter jets and their successor MIDS-JTRS terminals

disposable weapon data links and portable small tactical terminals

On July 2010 we completed the acquisition of all outstanding shares of the parent company of Stonewood privately

held company registered in England and Wales see Note to our consolidated financial statements Stonewood is leader

in the design manufacture and delivery ot data at rest encryption products and services In connection with the acquisi

tion we paid approximately $14.2 million in cash and issued approximately 144962 shares of ViaSat common stock to for

mer Stonewood stockholders The acquisition was accounted for as purchase and accordingly the consolidated financial

statements include the operating results of Stonewood from the date of acquisition in our government systems segment

COMMERCIAL NETWORKS

Our commercial networks segment develops and produces variety of advanced end-to-end satellite communication

systems and ground networking equipment and products that address five key market segments consumer enterprise

in-flight maritime and ground mobile applications These communication systems networking equipment and products are

generally developed through combination of customer and discretionary internal research and development funding

Our satellite communication systems and ground networking equipment and products cater to wide range at domestic

and international commercial customers and include

Consumer broadband including next-generation satellite network infrastructure and ground terminals to access

high capacity satellites

Antenna systems for terrestrial and satellite applications speciahzing in geospatial imagery mobile satellite

communication Ka-band gateways and other multi-band antennas

Mobile broadband satellite communication systems designed for use in aircraft seagoing vessels and high-speed trains

Enterprise VSAT networks and products designed to provide enterprises with broadband access to the internet or

private networks

Satellite networking development programs including specialized design and technology services covering all aspects of

satellite communication system architecture and technology
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SATELLITE SERVICES

Our satellite services segment complements our government systems and commercial networks segments by providing

wholesale and retail satellite-based broadband internet services in the United States via our distribution and capacity

agreements as well as managed network services for the satellite communication systems of our consumer enterprise arid

mobile broadband customers

The primary services offered by our satellite services segment comprise

Wholesale and retail broadband services comprised of WildBlue service which provides two-way satellite-based

broadband internet access to consumers and small businesses in the United States

Our Yonder worldwide mobile broadband services comprised of global network management services for customers

who use our ArcLighb-based mobile satellite systems

On December 15 2009 we acquired WildBlue leading Ka-band satellite broadband internet service provider In connec

tion with the acquisition we paid approximately $442.7 million in cash and issued approximately 4.29 million shares ot

ViaSat common stock to WildBlue equity and debt holders see Note to our consolidated financial statementsl The acqui

sition was accounted for as purchase and accordingly the consolidated financial statements include the operating results

of WildBlue from the date of acquisition in our satellite services segment

SOURCES OF REVENUES

With respect to our government systems and commercial networks segments to date our ability to grow and maintain our

revenues has depended on our ability to identify and target markets where the customer places high priority on the tech

nology solution and our ability to obtain additional sizable contract awards Due to the nature of this process it is difficult

to predict the probability and timing of obtaining awards in these markets

Our products in these segments are provided primarily through three types of contracts fixed-price time-and-materials

and cost-reimbursement contracts Fixed-price contracts which require us to provide products and services under

contract at specified price comprised approximately 95% of our total revenues for fiscal year 2011 91% of our total

revenues for fiscal year 2010 and 86% of our total revenues for fiscal year 2009 The remainder ot our revenue in these

segments for such periods was derived from cost-reimbursement contracts under which we are reimbursed for all actual

costs incurred in performing the contract to the extent such costs are within the contract ceiling and allowable under the

terms of the contract plus fee or profit and from lime-and-materials contracts which reimburse us for the number of

labor hours expended at an established hourly rate negotiated in the contract plus the cost of materials utilized in providing

such products or services

Historically signiticant portion of our revenues has been derived from customer contracts that include the research and

development of products The research and development efforts are conducted in direct response to the customers spe
cific requirements and accordingly expenditures related to such efforts are included in cost of sales when incurred and

the related funding which includes profit component is included in revenues Revenues for our funded research and

development from our customer contracts were approximately $210.6 million or 26% of our total revenues during fiscal year

2011 $92.9 million or 14% of our total revenues during fiscal year 2010 and $126.7 million or 20% of our total revenues

during fiscal year 2009

We also incur independent research and development IRD expenses which are not directly funded by third party

lRD expenses consist primarily of salaries and other personnel-related expenses supplies prototype materials testing

and certification related to research and development programs IRD expenses were approximately 4% of total revenues

during fiscal years 2011 and 2010 arid 5% of total revenues during fiscal year 2009 As government contractor we are

able to recover portion of our IRD expenses pursuant to our government contracts

Our satellite services segment revenues are primarily derived from our WildBlue business which provides wholesale and

retail satellite-based broadband internet services in the United States and our managed network services which comple

ment both our government systems and commercial networks segments by supporting the satellite communication systems

of our consumer enterprise and mobile broadband customers Our WildBlue retail satellite-based broadband internet ser

vices which have been included in our results of operations since our acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009 were

ft approximately 16% of total revenues during fiscal year 2011 and immaterial for fiscal year 2010

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations discusses our consolidated finan

cial statements which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States GAAP The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions

ca that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of

the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period We consider the

policies discussed below to be critical to an understanding of our financial statements becaise their application places the



most significant demands on managements judgment with financial reporting results relying on estimation about the effect

of matters that are inherently uncertain We describe the specific risks for these critical accounting policies in the following

paragraphs For all of these policies we caution that future events rarely develop exactly as forecast and even the best

estimates routinely require adjustment

REVENUE RECOGNITION

substantial portion of our revenues is derived from long-term contracts requiring development and delivery of complex

equipment built to customer specifications Sales related to these contracts are accounted for under the authoritative guid

ance for the percentage-of-completion method of accounting ASC 605-35 Sales and earnings under these contracts are

recorded either based on the ratio of actual costs incurred to date to total estimated costs expected to be incurred related

to the contract or as products are shipped under the units-of-delivery method

The percentage-of-completion method of accounting requires management to estimate the profit margin for each individual

contract and to apply that profit margin on uniform basis as sales are recorded under the contract The estimation of

profit margins requires management to make projections of the total sales to be generated and the total costs that will be

incurred under contract These projections require management to make numerous assumptions and estimates relating

to items such as the complexity of design and related development costs performance of subcontractors availability and

cost of materials labor productivity and cost overhead and capital costs and manufacturing efficiency These contracts

often include purchase options for additional quantities and customer change orders for additional or revised product func

tionality Purchase options and change orders are accounted for either as an integral part of the original contract or sepa

rately depending upon the nature and value of the item For contract claims or similar items we apply judgment in

estimating the amounts and assessing the potential for realization These amounts are only included in contract value when

they can be reliably estimated and realization is considered probable Anticipated losses on contracts are recognized in full

in the period in which losses become probable and estimable During fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 we recorded

losses of approximately $12.1 million $9.3 million and $5.4 million respectively related to loss contracts

Assuming the initial estimates of sales and costs under contract are accurate the percentage-of-completion method

results in the profit margin being recorded evenly as revenue is recognized under the contract Changes in these underlying

estimates due to revisions in sales and future cost estimates or the exercise of contract options may result in profit margins

being recognized unevenly over contract as such changes are accounted for on cumulative basis in the period esti

mates are revised We believe we have established appropriate systems and processes to enable us to reasonably estimate

future cost on our programs through regular quarterly evaluations of contract costs scheduling and technical matters by

business unit personnel and management Historically in the aggregate we have not experienced significant deviations in

actual costs from estimated program costs and when deviations that result in significant adjustments arise we disclose the

related impact in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations However these

estimates require significant management judgment and significant change in future cost estimates on one or more pro

grams could have material eftect on our results of operations one percent variance in our future cost estimates on

open fixed-price contracts as of April 20H would change our income before income taxes by approximately $0.5 million

We also derive substantial portion of our revenues from contracts and purchase orders where revenue is recorded on

delivery of products or performance of services in accordance with the authoritative guidance for revenue recognition ASC
605 Under this standard we recognize revenue when an arrangement exists prices are fixed and determinable

collectability is reasonably assured and the goods or services have been delivered

We also enter into certain leasing arrangements with customers and evaluate the contracts in accordance with the authori

tative guidance for leases ASC 840 Our accounting for equipment leases involves specific determinations under the

authoritative guidance which often involve complex provisions and significant judgments In accordance with the authorita

tive guidance for leases we classify the transactions as sales type or operating leases based on review for transfers of

ownership of the property to the lessee by the end of the lease term review of the lease terms to determine if it con

tains an option to purchase the leased property for price which is sufficiently lower than the expected fair value of the

property at the date of the option review of the lease term to determine if it is equal to or greater than 75% of the eco

nomic life of the equipment and review of the present value of the minimum lease payments to determine if they are

equal to or greater than 90% of the fair market value of the equipment at the inception of the lease Additionally we con

sider the cancelability of the contract and any related uncertainty of collections or risk in recoverability of the lease invest-

mont at lease inception Revenue from saies type leases is recognized at the inception of the lease or when %e equipment

has been delivered and installed at the customer site if installation is required Revenues from equipment rentals under

operating leases are recognized as earned over the lease term which is generally on straight-line basis

When sale involves multiple elements such as sales of products that include services the entire fee from the arrange

ment is allocated to each respective element based on its relative fair value in accordance with the authoritaove guidance

for accounting for multiple element revenue arrangements ASC 605-25 and recognized when the applicable revenue rec

ognition criteria for each element have been met The amount of product and service revenue recognized is impactert by

our judgments as to whether an arrangement includes multiple elements and if so whether sufficient objective and reliable
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evidence of fair value exists for those elements Changes to the elements in an arrangement and our ability to establish

evidence for those elements could affect the timing of revenue recognition

Collections in excess of revenues and deferred revenues represent cash collected from customers in advance of revenue

recognition and are recorded in accrued liabilities for obligations within the next twelve months Deferred revenues

extending beyond the twelve months are recorded within other liabilities in the consolidated financial statements

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

We make estimates of the collectability of our accounts receivable based on historical had debts customer creditworthi

ness and current economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts Historically our

bad debt allowances have been minimal primarily because significant portion of our sales has been to the U.S govern

ment or is related to our satellite service commercial business which we bill and collect in advance Our accounts receiv

able balance was $191.9 million net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $0.5 million as of April 2011 and our

accounts receivable balance was $176.4 million net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $0.5 million as of April 2010

WARRANTY RESERVES

We provide limited warranties on our products for periods of up to five years We record liability for our warranty obliga

tions when we ship the products or they are included in long-term construction contracts based upon an estimate of

expected warranty costs Amounts expected to be incurred within twelve months are classified as current liability For

mature products we estimate the warranty costs based on historical experience with the particular product For newer

products that do not have history of warranty costs we base our estimates on our experience with the technology

involved and the types of failures that may occur It is possible that our underlying assumptions will not reflect the actual

experience and in that case we will make future adjustments to the recorded warranty obligation

GOODWILL

We account for our goodwill under the authoritative guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets ASC 350 The

authoritative guidance for the goodwill impairment model is two-step process First it requires comparison of the book

value of net assets to the fair value of the reporting units that have goodwill assigned to them Reporting units within our

government systems commercial networks and satellite services segments have goodwill assigned to them If the fair value

is determined to be less than book value second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment In this

process fair value for goodwill is estimated based in part on the fair value of the reporting unit used in the first step and

is compared to its carrying value The shortfall of the fair value below carrying value if any represents the amount of good

will impairment We test goodwill for impairment during the fourth quarter every fiscal year and when an event occurs or

circumstances change such that it is reasonably possible that an impairment may exist

We estimate the fair values of the reporting units using discounted cash flows and other indicators of fair value such as

market comparable transactions We base the forecast of future cash flows on our best estimate of the future revenues and

operating costs which we derive primarily from existing firm orders expected future orders contracts with suppliers labor

agreements and general market conditions Changes in these forecasts could cause particular reporting unit to either

pass or fail the first step in the authoritative guidance related to the goodwill impairment model which could significantly

influence whether goodwill impairment needs to be recorded We adjust the cash flow forecasts by an appropriate dis

count rate derived from our market capitalization plus suitable control premium at the date of evaluation In applying the

first step which is identification of any impairment of goodwill no impairment of goodwill has resulted

PROPERTY EQUIPMENT AND SATELLITES

Equipment computers and software furniture and fixtures and our ViaSat-1 satellite and related gateway and networking

equipment under construction are recorded at cost net of accumulated depreciation Costs are capitalized as incurred and

for our satellite include construction launch and insurance Satellite construction costs including launch services and

insurance are generally procured under long-term contracts that provide for payments by us over the contract periods

Also we are constructing gateway facilities network operations systems and other assets to support the satellite under con

struction and these construction costs are capitalized as incurred Interest expense is capitalized on the carrying value of

the satellite and related gateway and networking equipment during the construction period Satellite construction and

launch services costs are capitalized to reflect progress toward completion which typically coincides with contract mile

.i stone payment schedules Insurance premiums related to the satellite launch and subsequent in-orbit testing are capital

ized and amortized over the estimated useful lives of the satellite Performance incentives payable in future periods are

dependent on the continLied satisfactory performance of the satellite in service

As result of the acquisition of WiIdBIue on December 15 2009 we acquired the WildBlue-1 satellite which had been

placed into service in March 2007 and an exclusive prepaid lifetime capital lease of Ka-band capacity on Telesat Canadas

Anik F2 satellite which had been placed into service in April 2005 and related gateway and networking equipment on

both satellites The acquired assets also included the indoor and outdoor customer premise equipment CPE units leased

to subscribers under WildBIues retail leasing program



Occasionally we may enter into capital lease arrangements for various machinery equipment computer-related equipment

software furniture or fixtures As of April 2011 assets under capital lease totaled approximately $3.1 million We had no

material capital lease arrangements as of April 2010 We record amortization of assets leased under capital lease

arrangements within depreciation expense

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS PROPERTY EQUIPMENT AND SATELLITES AND OTHER ASSETS

In accordance with the authoritative guidance for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets ASC 360 we assess poten

tial impairments to our long-lived assets including property equipment and satellites and other assets when there is evi

dence that events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable We recognize an

impairment loss when the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by an asset or group of assets are less than

the assets carrying value Any required impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the assets carrying

value exceeds its fair value and would be recorded as reduction in the carrying value of the related asset and charged to

results of operations No material impairments were recorded by us for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

INCOME TAXES AND VALUATION ALLOWANCE ON DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Management evaluates the realizability of our deferred tax assets and assesses the need for valuation allowance on

quarterly basis In accordance with the authoritative guidance for income taxes ASC 740 net deferred tax assets are

reduced by valuation allowance if based on all the available evidence it is more likely than not that some or all of the

deferred tax assets will not be realized OLir valuation allowance against deferred tax assets decreased from $13.1 million at

April 2010 to $12.7 million at April 2011 The valuation allowance primarily relates to state net operating loss carryfor

wards and research credit carryforwards available to reduce state income taxes

Accruals for uncertain tax positions are provided for in accordance with the authoritative guidance for accounting for uncer

tainty in income taxes ASC 740 Under the authoritative guidance we may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax

position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities

based on the technical merits of the position The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such position

should be measured based on the largest benefit that has greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate

settlement The authoritative guidance addresses the derecognition of income tax assets and liabilities classification ot

current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities accounting for interest and penalties associated with tax positions

and income tax disclosures

We are subject to income taxes in the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions In the ordinary course of business

there are calculations and transactions where the ultimate tax determination is uncertain In addition changes in tax laws

and regulations as well as adverse judicial rulings could adversely affect the income tax provision We believe we have

adequately provided for income tax issues not yet resolved with federal state and foreign tax authorities However if these

provided amounts prove to be more than what is necessary the reversal of the reserves would result in tax benefits being

recognized in the period in which we determine that provision for the liabilities is no longer necessary If an ultimate tax

assessment exceeds our estimate of tax liabilities an additional charge to expense would result

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table presents as percentage of total revenues income statement data for the periods indicated

Aprii Apni

riscal Years Ended 2010 2009

Revenues 100.0% 100.0%

Product revenues 84.9 94.8

Service revenues 15.1 5.2

Operating expenses

Cost of product revenues 59.3 67.6

Cost of service revenues 3.5

Selling general and admeristratise 19.3 15.7

Independent research and development 4.0 4.7

Amortization of acquired intangilde assets 1.4 1.4

Income from operations 6.3 7.1

Income before income faxes 5.3

Provision for income taxes 0.8 .1

Net income 4.5 6.1

Net income attributable to ViaSat Inc 4.5 6.1
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FISCAL YEAR 2011 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2010

Product Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended

In miflions except percentages

Product revenues

Percentage of total revenues

April

2011

523.9

65.3%

Product revenues decreased from $584.1 million to $523.9 million during fiscal year 2011 when compared to fiscal year

2010 The product revenue decline was primarily due to lower product sales in our commercial networks segment related

to enterprise VSAT networks and products of $29.0 million and consumer broadband products of $29.0 million Our gov

ernment systems segment also experienced product revenue reductions as tactical data link products revenues decreased

by $23.2 million and information assurance products revenues decreased by $7.0 million These decreases were offset by

higher product sales of $15.5 million in antenna systems products $10.7 million in government satellite communication

systems and $6.1 million in next-generation broadband equipment development programs

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011 based on recent events including communications with the DCMA changes irt the

regulatory environment for federal government contractors and the status of current government audits we recorded an

additional $5.0 million in contract-related reserves for our estimate of potential refunds to cListomers for potential cost

adjustments on several multi-year U.S government cost reimbursable contracts which resulted in decrease to revenues

and earnings For additional information see Risk Factors Our Business Could Be Adversely Atfected by Negative

Audit by the U.S Government in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K

Years Ended

In nullierrs except percentages

Service revenues

Percentage of total revenues

April

2011

278.3

347%

April Dollar increase Percentage Increase

2010 Decrease Decrease

584.1 60.1 10.3%

84.900

April OolIr Increase Percentage Irrcrease

2010 Decrease Decreane

104.0 174.3 167.6%

15.1

April Dollar Increase Percerrage increase

2010 Decrease Decrease

408.5 18.6 5%
69.9%

Service revenues increased from $104.0 million to $278.3 million during fiscal year 2011 when compared to fiscal year

2010 primarily due to our acquisition of WldBlue in December 2009 which contributed an increase in service revenues of

$152.8 million in fiscal year 2011 when compared to fiscal year 2010 The remaining service revenue increases were pri

marily driven by growth in government satellite communication systems and mobile broadband services of $16.0 million

Cost of Product Revenues

Fiscal Years Errded

In rniliiorrs except percentages

Cost of product revenues

Percentage of product revenues

April

2011

389.9

74.4%

Cost of product revenues decreased from $408.5 million to $389.9 million during fiscal year 2011 when compared to fiscal

year 2010 On constant margin basis the decreased revenues caused $38.6 million reduction in cost of product reve

nues This decrease was offset by an increase in cost of product revenues of $8.5 million due to an additional program for

ward loss in our government systems segment for government satellite communication program recorded in the first

quarter of fiscal year 2011 as discussed below and an additional increase in Cost of ptoduct revenues of $11.5 million

mainly as result of product cost increases from lower margin development programs in our consumer broadband infor

mation assurance and next-generation tactical datalink product areas Cost of product revenues may fluctuate in future

periods depending on the mix of products sold competition new product introduction costs and other factors

In June 2010 we performed extensive integration teshng of numerous system components that had been separately devel

oped as part of government satellite communication program As result of this testirtg and subsequent interrtal reviews

and analyses we determined that significant additional rework was required in order to complete the program requirements

and specifications and to prepare for scheduled customer test in our fiscal second quarter This additional rework and

engineering effort resulted in substantial increase in estimated labor and material costs to complete the program

Accordingly during the first quarter of fiscal year 2011 we recorded an additional forward loss of $8.5 million reated to

this estimate of program costs While we believe the additional forward loss is adequate to cover known risks to date and

that steps taken to improve the program performance will be effective the program is ongoing and our efforts and the end

Service Revenues
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results must be satisfactory to the customer We believe that our estimate of costs to complete the program is appropnate

based on known information however additional future losses could be required

Cost of Service Revenues

April Octal Increase Prcentage increase

2010 Decrease Do rease

66.8 93.8 140.3%

64.3%

Cost of service revenues increased from $66.8 million to $160.6 million during fiscal year 2011 when compared to fiscal

year 2010 primarily due to our acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009 which contributed to an increase of approxi

mately $83.9 million The remainder of the cost of service revenues growth was due to an $11.5 million increase from our

government satellite communication systems and mobile broadband services driven by service revenues increases During

the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011 we also recorded benefit to cost of service revenues of $5.2 million related to

WildBlue satellite capacity contract liability acquired and release of future payment liabilities related thereto

Cost of service revenues may fluctuate in future periods depending on the mix of services provided competition new ser

vice introduction costs and other factors

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

Apr Doilar increase Porcentage increase

2010 Oecrease Derease

132.9 31.4 23.6/

19.3%

The increase in selling general and administrative SGA expenses of $31.4 million during fiscal year 2011 compared to

fiscal prior year 2010 was primarily due tn our acquisition of WildBlue which contributed an additional $30.0 million in

SGA expenses including $8.7 million in transaction-related expenses incurred in connection with the acquisition Our

other SGA expenses increased $10.7 million primarily due to additional support costs resulting from growth in our busi

ness SGA expenses consist primarily of personnel costs and expenses for business development marketing and sales

bid and proposal facilities finance contract administration and general management

Independent Research and Development

Fiscal Years Ended

lie nniiisjns except percentages

inctependerd research and development

Percentage of total resonuns

The increase in lRD expenses of approximately $1.4 million reflects year-over-year increase in our commercial networks

segment of $2.7 million principally related to next-generation satellite communication systems offset by decrease in our

government systems segment of approximately $1.6 million primarily due to next-generation military satellite commurscation

systems development programs

Fnscai Years Ended

in miSses except percentages

Cost of sereice reeeni.Jes

Percentaee of service resenues

April

2011

160.6

57

Fiscal Years Ended

in rnC5snrs except perceniages

Seling general and administrative

Percentage of total reeenues

April

2011

164.3

20 5/

287

36%

Aprii Dsiier increase Pnrcesioge In crease

2010 Oecrnase On reese

27.3 1.4 5.1%

4.0%
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Amortization of Acquired Intangible Assets We amortize our acquired intangible assets from prior acquisitions over their

estimated useful lives ranging from eight months to ten years The increase in amortization of approximately $9.9 million in

fiscal year 2011 when compared to last fiscal year was the result of our acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009 which

contributed an increase of $9.2 million and our acquisition of Stonewood in July 2010 which contributed an increase of

$1.6 million These increases were slightly offset by decrease in amortization as certain acquired technology and other

intangibles in our commercial networks and government systems segments became fully amortized during fiscal year 2011

Current and expected amortization expense for acquired intangible assets for each of the following periods is as follows

in thousands Amortoation

Expected for fiscal year 2012 18735

Expected for fiscal year 2013 15623

Expected for fiscal year 2014 13879

Expected for fiscal
year

2015 13803

Expecfed for fiscal year 2016 10203

Thereafter 9646

81889

Interest Income The decrease in interest income of $0.3 million year-over-year was primarily due to lower interest rates on

our investments and lower average invested cash balances during fiscal year 2011 when compared to fiscal year 2010

Interest Expense The decrease in interest expense of $4.2 million year-over-year was primarily due to higher capitalized

interest associated with our ViaSat-1 satellite related gateway and networking equipment and other assets under

construction For fiscal years 2011 and 2010 we capitalized interest expense of approximately $28.3 million and $8.8

million respectively Interest expense incurred during fiscal years 201 and 2010 relates to the 8.875% Senior Notes

due 2016 the Notes which were issued during the third quarter of fiscal year 2010 and the Companys revolving credit

facility the Credit Facility

fBene fit from Provision for Income Taxes The decrease in the effective income tax rate from 15.0% in fiscal year 2010

compared to zero in fiscal year 2011 was primarily due to increased federal tax credits in fiscal year 2011 as the federal

research credit in fiscal year 2011 included fifteen months of the credit compared to only nine months in fiscal year 2010

as result of the December 2010 reinstatement of the credit retroactively from January 2010

OUR SEGMENT RESULTS FISCAL YEAR 2011 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2010

GOVEPNMENT SYSTEMS SEGMENT

Revenues

Fiscai Years Ended

in rnilhsos except percextages

Revenues

Aprti

2011

384.1

April Dotur increase Percentage increase

2010 Decrease Decrease

385.2 0.31%

Our government systems Segment experienced slight revenue decrease in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010

primarily attributable to tactical data link revenue reductions of $20.2 million and information assurance products of $6.1

million offset by continued growth in our government satellite communication systems revenues of $23.2 million

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011 based on recent events including communications with the DCMA changes in the

regulatory environment for federal government contractors and the status of current government audits we recorded an

additional $5.0 million in contract-related reserves for our eshmate of potential refunds to customers for potential cost

adjustments on several multi-year U.S government cost reimbursable contracts which resulted in decrease to revenues

and earnings For additional information see Risk FactorsOur Business Could Be Adversely Affected by Negative

Audit by the U.S Government in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K
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The decrease in our government systems segment operating profit of $25.8 milton year-over-year was primanly due to

decreased revenues including the $5.0 million cost reimbursable contracts revenue reserve recorded in the fourth quarter

of fiscal year 2011 discussed above Additionally the segment experienced lower product contributions mainly related to

the $8.5 million forward loss recorded on government satellite communication program in the first quarter of fiscal year

2011 as discussed below as well as an increase in selling support and new business proposal costs of $15.0 million

In June 2010 we performed extensive integration testing of numerous system components that had been separately devel

oped as part of government satellite communication program As result of this testing and subsequent internal reviews

and analyses we determined that significant additional rework was required in order to complete the program requirements

and specifications and to prepare for scheduled customer test in our fiscal second quarter This additional rework and

engineering effort resulted in substantial increase in estimated labor and material costs to complete the program

Accordingly during the first quarter of fiscal year 2011 we recorded an additional forward loss of $8.5 million related to this

estimate of program costs While we believe the additional forward loss is adequate to cover known risks to slate and that

steps taken to improve the program performance will be effective the program is ongoing and our efforts and the end

results must be satisfactory to the customer We believe that our estimate of costs to complete the program rs appropriate

based on known information however additional future losses could be required

COMMERCiAL NETWORKS SEGMENT

Revenues

Ml

Fiscal Years Ended

in nnlhons except percentages

Revenues

April

2011

1831

Aprii Doliar Increase Perentage sr lease

2010 Oecrease Decrease

227.1 44.0 119.41%

The decrease of approximately $44.0 milton in our commercial networks segment revenue in fiscal year 2011 compared to

fiscal year 2010 was attributable to decrease of $30.5 million in consumer broadband products and services and $27.2 mil

lion in enterprise VSAT networks products and services These decreases were offset by increases in revenues of $17.5 million

in antenna systems products and services and $6.1 million in next generation broadband equipment development programs

Our commercial networks segment results yielded an operating loss in fiscal year 2011 compared to an operating profit in

fiscal year 2010 This change was primarily due to lower earnings contributions of approximately $16.1 million due to the

lower revenues and an increase in IRD costs of $2.7 million which were offset by decrease in selling support and new

business proposal costs of approximately $3.2 million

Segment Operating Loss Profit

April Doliar Increase Fecentage ln reese

2010 i0ecreasei Deciease

6.1 15.6 255.71%

2.7%

SATEL ITS CERVICES SEGMENT

Revenues

April Deilar increase Recestage iii levee

2010 Decrease Oer ieasei

75.8 159.1 209.9%

Segment Operating Profit

Fiscal Years Ended

lie mitions except percentages

Segment operating profit

Percentage of segment revenues

April

2011

29.9

78/

April

2010

55.7

Dollar increase Per.entage increase

Decrease Oecrease

25.8 46.4%

14.5%

Fiscal Years Ended

in nslFnns eacepi percentages

Segment operating loss profit

Percentage of segment revenues

ApnI

2011

95
2%

Fir.cal Years Ended

Fri rnLliner irecept percentages

Revenues

April

2011

2350

The increase of approximately $159.1 million in satellite services segment revenue fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal

year 2010 was attributable to our acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009 which contributed an additional $157.4 million
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in total revenue The remainder of the increase in our satellite services segment was primarily driven by growth in our

mobile broadband services revenues

Segment Operating Profit Loss

Fincai Years Ended

in miSaris except percentages

Segment operating profit loss

Percentage ot segment revenues

April

2011

38.2

16.3%

Our satellite services segment generated an operating profit in fiscal year 2011 compared to an operating loss in fiscal

year 2010 This change was primarily attributable to our acquisition of WildBue in December 2009 and related year-

over-year profitability growth During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011 we also recorded benefit to cost of service

revenues of $5.2 million related to WildBlue satellite capacity contract liability acquired and release of future payment

liabilities related thereto

Fiscal Years Ended

in mitixns except percentages

Product revenues

Percentage of total revenues

April

2010

584.1

84.9%

Product revenues decreased from $595.3 million to $584.1 million during fiscal year 2OlCl when compared to fiscal year

2009 The decrease in product revenues was primarily due to lower product sales of $15.8 million in information assur

ance products $14.7 million in consumer broadband products $11.7 million in mobile broadband satellite communica

tions systems products artd $5.1 million in tactical data link products offset by higher product sales of $13.7 million
irt

enterprise VSAT networks and products $10.7 million in government satellite communication systems and $9.3 million

in antenna systems products

Fiscai Years Ended

tin mWisns except percerrtages

Service revenues

Percentage of total revenues

April

2010

1040

15.1%

Aprii Datar increase Percentage increase

2010 Decrease inecreasni

193 47.5 5108%

12.31%

Aprii Dotar irrcrease Perceritagrr increase

2009 Decrease Oecreasei

595.3 11.31 1.91%

94.8%

Ainnii Dntar increase Percentage increase

2009 Decrease Decrease

32 71.2 216 7%

5.2%

Apnii Dstar increase Percentage increase

2009 Decrease Decrease

424.6 16 13.81%

71 3%

Service revenues increased from $32.8 million to $104.0 million during fiscal yttar 2010 when compared to fiscal year

2009 primarily due to the acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009 which contributed $62.5 million of service revenues

in fiscal year 2010 The remainder of the service revenue increase was primarily driven by growth in our mobile broadband

service revenues and approximately $5.2 mdlion from our government satellite communication systems service sales

Cost of Product Revenues

Eiscai Years Ernded

lie rniiinns except percentages

Cost of product revenues

Percentage of product revenues

April

2010

408.5

69 /o

Our cost of product revenues decreased from $424.6 million to $408.5 million during fiscal year 2010 when compared to

fiscal year 2009 primarily due to the decreased product revenues which caused decrease of approximately $8.0 million

in cost of product revenues We also experienced improved product margins resulting in furttter decrease in cost of prod

uct revenues of approximately $8.1 million This improvement in margin was primarily due to product cost reductions in

information assurance products consumer broadband programs and enterprise VSAT networks in fiscal year 2010 com
pared to fiscal year 2009

FISCAL YEAR 2010 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2009

Product Revenues

Service Revenues

-J
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Cost of Service Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended

in millions except percentages

Cost of service revenues

Percentage of service revenues

April

2010

66.8

64.3%

April Dollar increase Percentage mr rvase

2009 Decrease Decrease

22.2 44.6 201.0%

67.6%

Our cost of service revenues increased from $22.2 million to $66.8 million during fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal

year 2009 primarily due to the service revenue increase from the acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009 The remain

der of the increase in cost of service revenues was primarily driven by service revenue increases from our mobile broad

band services and our government satellite communication systems services

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

Frscai Years Ended

in millions except percentages

Selling general and administrative

Percentage of total revenues

April

132.9

19.3%

April Dsiiar Increase Pecentage increase

2009 Decrease Dec rease

98.6 34.3 34.7%

15.7%

The increase in SGA expenses of $34.3 million during fiscal year 2010 compared to fiscal year 2009 was primarily attrib

utable to $21.0 million in SGA attributable to WildBlue since the date of acquisition of which $2.7 million related to certain

post-acquisition charges recorded for restructuring cost related to terminated employees $8.7 million in transaction-related

expenses incurred in connection with the WildBlue acquisition and approximately $3.8 million in new business proposal

costs for new contract awards SGA expenses consist primarily of personnel costs and expenses for business develop

ment marketing and sales bid and proposal facilities finance contract administration and general management

Independent Research and Development

Fiscal Years Ended

in relikons except percentages

independent research and development

Percentage of total revenues

April

2010

27.3

April Dollar increase Pvicentage In rease

2009 Decrease Decrease

29.6 l7.8%

4.7%

The decrease in lRD expenses of approximately $2.3 million reflects year-over-year decrease in the government systems

segment of $3.4 million offset by an increase in the commercial networks segment of $1.1 million for fiscal year 2010

when compared to fiscal year 2009 The lower lRD expenses were principally due to shift of some of our efforts from

internal development projects to customer-funded development

Amortization of Acquired Intangible Assets We amortize our acquired intangible assets from prior acquisitions over their

estimated useful lives ranging from eight months to ten years The increase in amortization was primarily due to the amorti

zation of approximately $3.8 million relattd to the new intangibles acquired as result of the WildBlue acqursition in

December 2009 offset partially by decrease in amortization due to the fact that certain acquired technology intangibles

in our commercial networks segment became fully amortized during fiscal year 2010

Interest Income The decrease in interest income of $0.8 million year-over-year was primarily due to lower interest rates on

our investments and lower average invested cash balances during fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal year 2009

Interest Expense The increase in interest expense of $6.8 million year-over-year was primarily due to interest expense on

the Notes and the Credit Facility We captalized $8.8 million of interest expense associated with the construction of our

ViaSat-1 satellite and other assets currently under construction during fiscal year 2010 compared to no amounts capitalized

during fiscal year 2009

Provision for Income Taxes The effective income tax rate remained flat at 15.0% in fiscal years 2010 and 2009 The provi

sion for income taxes for fiscal year 2010 reflects the expiration of the federal research and development tax credit on

December 31 2009 and the recognition of approximately $3.5 million of previously unrecognized tax benefits due to the

expiration of the statute of limitations for certain previously filed tax returns
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OUR SEGMENT RESULTS FISCAL YEAR 2010 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2009

GOVERNMENT SYSTEMS SEGMENT

Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended

Re rn3isns except percentages

Revenues

April

2010

385.2

Apr Del Err increase Percentage increase

2009 Decrease Decrease

388.7 3.5 O.9%

The revenue decrease in our government systems segment was primarily due to lower sales of $16.4 million in information

assurance products primarily due to delayed awards caused by the timing of government funding for number of custom

ers and $4.3 million in tactical data link products offset by higher sales of $15.9 million in ctur government satellite com
munication systems and higher sales of approximately $1.3 million spread across varioLis other products

Segment Operating Profit

April Deilar increase
Percentage Increase

2009 Decrease Decrease

57.0 1.3 2.3%
14.7%

Our government systems segment operating profit decreased $1.3 million during fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal

year 2009 primarily due to higher new business proposal costs for new contract awards of approximately $5.5 million off

set by lower RD costs of approximately $3.4 million

COMMERCIAL NETWORISS SEGMENT

Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended

in millions except percentages

Revenues

April

2010

227.1

April Dollar Increase Percentage increase

2009 Deciease Decrease

230.8 3.7 61%

Our commercial networks segment revenue decrease was mainly due to reduction in product sales of $15.7 million from

our consumer broadband products partially due to ViaSat no longer selling equipment to WildBIue as customtr following

our acquisition of WildBlue and $11.8 million from our mobile broadband satellite communication systems prodLicts These

decreases were offset by higher product sales of $13.5 million from our enterprise VSAT networks and $9.4 million from

our antenna systems products

Segment Operating Pro ftt

Fiscal Years Ended

in miiiiens except percentages

Segment operating profit

Percentage of segment revenues

Dotar tricreasa Percentage increase

Decrease Decrease

6.0 9568.3%

Fiscal Years Ended

tin millions except percentages

Segment operating profit

Percentage of segment revenues

April

2010

55.7

14.5%

April

2010

April

2009

0.1

0.0%

Our commercial networks segment operating profit increased in fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal year 2009 pri

marily due to product cost decreases resulting in higher product margin contributions of approximately $4.9 million mainly

from our consumer broadband products and our enterprise VSAT networks products arid $3.2 million decrease in sell

ing support and new business proposal costs offset by $1.1 million increase in IRD costs

SATELUTE SERVICES SEGMENT

Revenues

Fiscal Years Ended

En millions except percentages

uJ

-J

eE

no

us

Revenues

April

2010

75.8

April

2009

8.7

Dollar Increase

Decrease

67.1

The increase in our satellite services segment revenue in fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal year 2009 was primarily

due to the acquisition of WildBlue in December 2009 which contributed $63.4 million of revenues in fiscal year 2010 The

remainder of the revenue increase was primarily driven by growth in our mobile broadband services revenues

Percentage Increase

Decrease

771.9%



April

2010

9.3
12.3%

LO

Jr

April Dollar increase Per entage increase

2009 Decrease Decsase

4.0 5.3 133.9%

l45.8%

The increase in our satellite services segment operating loss of $5.3 million in fiscal year 2010 when compared to fiscal

year 2009 was primarily due to approximately $8.7 million in transaction-related expenses incurred in connection with the

WildBlue acquisition and $21.0 million in SGA expenses incurred by WildBlue during fiscal year 2010 since the date of

acquisition of which $2.7 million was related to certain post-acquisition charges recorded for restructuring costs related to

terminated employees offset by WildBlue revenues and related product contributions of $25.5 million

BACKLOG
As reflected in the table below both funded and firm backlog increased during fiscal year 2011 in the government systems

segment despite continuing U.S government defense budget delays Funded and firm backlog in the commercial segment

declined primarily due to expected contract awards being delayed and shifting to the early part of fiscal year 2012

in miNions

FIRM BACKLOG

Government Systems segment

Commercial Networks segment

Satellite Services segment

Total

FUNDED BACKLOG

Government Systems segment

Commercial Networks segment

Satellite Services segment

Totel

April

2011

283.8

216.7

282

528.7

2356

216.7

28.2

4805

April

2010

217.8

283.5

27.5

528.8

210.0

283.5

27.5

521.0

The firm backlog does not include contract options Of the $528.7 million in firm backlog approximately $357.2 million is

expected to be delivered in fiscal year 2012 and the balance is expected to be delivered in fiscal year 2013 end thereafter

We include in our backlog only those orders for which we have accepted purchase orders

Our total new awards were $853.5 million $773.0 million and $736.0 million for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 respec

tively New contract awards in fiscal year 2011 were record for us

Backlog is not necessarily indicative of future sales majority of our contracts can be terminated at the convenience of the

customer Orders are often made substantially in advance of delivery and our contracts typically provide that orders may be

terminated with limited or no penalties In addition purchase orders may present product specifications that would require

us to complete additional product development failure to develop products meeting such specifications could lead to

termination ot the related contract

Firm backlog amounts as presented are comprised ot funded and unfunded components Funded backlog represents the

sum of contract amounts for which funds have been specifically obligated by customers to contracts Unfunded backlog

represents future amounts that customers may obligate over the specified contract performance periods Our customers

allocate funds for expenditures on long-term contracts on periodic basis Our ability to realize revenues from contracts in

backlog is dependent upon adequate funding for such contracts Although we do not control the funding of our contracts

our experience indicates that actual contract fundings have ultimately been approximately equal to the aggregate amounts

of the contracts

Segment Operating Loss

Fiscai Years Ended

tin rniliioes eecept percentages

Segment operating loss

Percentage of segment revenues
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

OVERVIEW

We have financed our operations to date primarily with cash flows from operations bank line of credit financing debt

financing and equity financing At April 2011 we had $40.5 million in cash and cash equivalents $167.5 miflion in

working capital and $60.0 million in principal amount of outstanding borrowings Under our Credit Facility At April 2010

we had $89.6 million in cash and cash equivalents $214.5 million in working capital and $60.0 million in principal amount

of outstanding borrowings under our Credit Facility We invest our cash in excess of current operating requirements in

short-term interest-bearing investment-grade securities

The general cash needs of our government systems commercial networks and satellite services segments can vary signifi

cantly In our government systems segment the primary factors determining cash needs tend to be the type and mix of

contracts in backlog i.e product or service development or production and timing of payments and restrictions on the

timing of cash payments under U.S government procurement regulations In oijr commercial networks segment cash

needs tend to be driven primarily by the type and mix of contracts in backlog the nature arid quality of customers and the

payment terms of customers including whether advance payments are made or customer financing is required Other

factors affecting the cash needs of these segments include contract duration and program performance For example if

program is performing well and meeting its contractual requirements then its cash flow requirements are usually lower The

cash needs of our satellite services segment tend to be driven primarily by the timing of payment of capital expenditures

e.g milestones under our satellite construction timing of network expansion activities and launch contracts as well as

the quality of customer type of contract and payment terms

To further enhance our liquidity position we may obtain additional financing which could consist of debt convertible debt

or equity financing from public and/or private capital markets In March 2010 we filed urcversal shelf registration

statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC for the future sale of an unlimited amount of debt securities

common stock preferred stock depositary shares warrants and rights The securities may be offered from time to time

separately or together directly by us by selling security holders or through underwriters dealers or agents at amounts

prices interest rates and other terms to be determined at the time of the offering

Our future capital requirements will depend upon many factors including the timing and amount of cash required for the

ViaSat-1 satellite project pursuant to our contractual commitments other future broadband satellite projects we may engage

in expansion of our research and development and marketing efforts and the nature and timing of orders Additionally we

will continue to evaluate possible acquisitions of or investments in complementary businesses products and technologies

which may require the use of cash or additional financing We believe that our current cash balances and net cash

expected to be provided by operating activities along with availability under our Credit Facility will be sufficient to meet our

anticipated operating requirements for at least the next twelve months

CASH FLOWS

Cash provided by operating activities in fiscal year 2011 was $169.6 million compared to cash provided by operating activi

ties in fiscal year 2010 01 $112.5 million This increase of $57.1 million in cash provided by operating activities was primar

ily driven by our operating results net income adjusted for depreciation amortization and other non-cash charges which

generated $63.0 million of cash inflows offset by $5.9 rn/lion year-over-year increase in cash used to fund net operating

asset needs The increase in cash inflows was primarily due to the operations of WildBlue being included for the entire

fiscal year The increase in net operating assets was predominantly due to additional investment in our inventory of $15.6

million from April
2010 to support our government satellite communication systems and next generation broadband

equipment programs as well as due to $15.5 million increase in combined billed and unbilled accounts receivables net

from April
2010 attributable to contractual timing of certain milestones in our government systems segment

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal year 2011 was $237.7 million compared to cash used in investing activities in

fiscal year 2010 of $519.0 million The decrease in cash used in investing activities was primarily related to $378.0 million

of net cash used for the acquisition of WiIdBIue in fiscal year 2010 compared to approximately $13.5 million of net cash

used for the acquisition of Stonewood in fiscal year 2011 and decrease of approximately $13.8 million in capital expendi

tures for the construction of ViaSat-1 This decrease was offset by an increase of approximately $49.3 million in capital

expenditures for new CRE units used in our retail consumer broadband service and other general purpose equipment and

an additional $38.3 million for the construction of gateway facilities and network operation systems related to ViaSat-1

Cash provided by financing activities for fiscal year 2011 was $18.6 million compared to $432.1 million for fiscal year 2010

This $413.5 million decrease related primarily to $271.6 million in proceeds net of issue dscount from our borrowing

under the Notes $60.0 million in proceeds net of repayments from borrowings under our Credit Facility and $100.5

million in net proceeds from public offering of common stock during fiscal year 2011 These cash inflows in fiscal year

2010 were offset by the oayment of debt issuance costs of $12.8 million and the repurchase of 251731 shares of ViaSaf

common stock from Intelsat for approximately $8.0 million compared to $2.8 million payment of debt issuance costs in

fiscal year 2011 In addition cash provided by financing activities for both periods included cash received fronri stock



Lt

option exercises and employee stock purchase plan purchases which raised an additional $3.3 million year-ever-year and

cash used for the repurchase of common stock related to net share settlement of certain employee tax liabilities in connec

tion with the vesting of restricted stock unit awards

SATELLITE-RELATED ACTIVITIES

In January 2008 we entered into several agreements with Space Systems/Loral Inc SS/L Loral Space

Communications Inc fLoral and Telesat Canada related to our anticipated high-capacity satellite system Under the satel

lite construction contract with SS/L we purchased ViaSat-1 new high-capacity Ka-band spot-beam satellite designed by

us and currently under construction by SS/L for approximately $209.1 million subject to purchase price adjustments based

on satellite performance The total cost of the satellite is $246.0 million but as part of the satellite purchase arrangements

Loral executed separate contract with SS/L whereby Loral is purchasing the Canadian beams on the ViaSat-1 satellite for

approximately $36.9 million 15% of the total satellite cost We have entered into beam sharing agreement with Loral

whereby Loral has agreed to reimburse us for 15% of the total costs associated with launch and launch insurance which is

estimated to be approximately $22.5 million and in-orbit insurance and satellite operating costs post launch On March

2011 Loral entered into agreements with Telesat Canada pursuant to which Loral assigned to Telesat Canada and Telesat

Canada assumed from Loral all of Lorals rights and obligations with respect to the Canadian beams on ViaSat-1

In November 2008 we entered into launch services agreement with Arianespace to procure launch services for

ViaSat-1 at cost estimated to be $107.8 million depending on the mass of the satellite at launch In March 2009 we

substituted ILS International Launch Services Inc ILS for Arianespace as the primary provider of launch services for

ViaSat-1 and accordingly we entered into contract for launch services with ILS to procure launch services for ViaSat-1

at an estimated cost of approximately $80.0 million subject to certain adjustments resulting in net savings ot

approximately $20.0 million

On May 2009 we entered into an Amended and Restated Launch Services Agreement with Arianespace vihereby

Arianespace has agreed to perform certain launch services to maintain the launch capability for ViaSat-1 should the need

arise or for launch services of future ViaSat satellite launch prior to December 2015 This amendment and restatement

also provides for certain cost adjustments depending on fluctuations in foreign currencies mass of the satellite launched

and launch period timing

The projected total cost of the ViaSat-1 project including the satellite launch insurance and related gateway infrastructure

through in-service of the satellite is estimated to be approximately $400.0 million excluding capitalized interest and will

depend on the timing of the gateway infrastructure roll-out among other things However we anticipate capitalizing certain

amounts of interest expense related to our outstanding borrowings in connection with our capital projects under construc

tion such as construction of ViaSat-1 arid other assets We continually evaluate alternative strategies that would limit our

total required investment We believe we have adequate sources of funding for the project which includes our cash on

hand the cash we expect to generate from operations and additional borrowing ability based on our financial position and

debt leverage ratio We believe this provides us flexibility to execute this project ri an appropriate manner and/or obtain

outside equity under terms that we consider reasonable

SENIOR NOTES DUE 2016

On October 22 2009 we issued $275.0 million in principal aniount of Notes in private placement to institutional buyers

The Notes were exchanged in May 2010 for substantially identical Notes that had been registered with the SEC The Notes

bear interest at the rate of 8.875% per year payable semi-annually in cash in arrears which interest payments com
menced in March 2010 The Notes were issued with an original issue discount of 1.24% or $3.4 million The Notes are

recorded as long-term debt net of original issue discount in our consolidated financial statements The origeial issue dis

count and deferred financing cost associated with the issuance of the Notes are amortized to interest expense on

straight-line basis over the term of the Notes

The Notes are guaranteed on an unsecured senior basis by each of our existing and future subsidiaries that guarantees the

Credit Facility the Guarantor Subsidiaries The Notes and the guarantees are our and the Guarantor Subsidiaries general

senior unsecured obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of their existing
and future unsecured unsubordi

riated debt The Notes and the guarantees are effectively junior in right of payment to their existing and future securert

debt including under the Credit Facility to the extent of the value of the assets securing such debt are structurally subor

dinated to all existing and future liabilities including trade payables of our subsidiaries that are not guarantors of the Notes

and are senior in right of payment to all of ttieir existing and future subordinated indebtedness

The indenture governing the Notes limits among other things our and our restricted subsidiaries ability to incur assume

or guarantee additional debt issue redeemable stock and preferred stock pay dividends make distributions or redeem or

repurchase capital stock prepay redeem or repurchase subordinated debt make loans and investments grant or incur

liens restrict dividends loans or asset transfers from restricted subsidiaries sell or otherwise dispose of assets enter into

transactions with affiliates reduce our satellite insurance and consolidate or merge with or sell substantially all of their

assets to another person
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Prior to September 15 2012 we may redeem up to 35% of the Notes at redemption price of 108.875% of the principal

amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest it any thereon to the redemption date from the net cash proceeds of

specified equity offerings We may also redeem the Notes prior to September 15 2012 in whole or in part at redemption

price equal to 100% of the
principal amount thereof plus the applicable premium and any accrued and unpaid interest if

any thereon to the redemption date The applicable premium is calculated as the greater of 1.0% of the principal

amount of such Notes and ii the excess if any of the present value at such date of redemption of the redemption

price of such Notes on September 15 2012 plus all required interest payments due on such Notes through September

15 2012 excluding accrued but unpaid interest to the date of redemption computed using discount rate equal to the

treasury rate as defined under the indenture plus 50 basis points over the then-outstanding principal amount of such

Notes The Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time during the twelve months beginning on September 15

2012 at redemption price of 106.656% during the twelve months beginning on Seplember 15 2013 at redemption

price of 104.438% during the twelve months beginning on September 15 2014 at redemption price of 102.219% and

at any time on or after September 12 2015 at redemption price of 100% in each case plus accrued and unpaid interest

if any thereon to the redemption date

In the event change of control occurs as defined under the indenture each holder will have the right to reqUire us to

repurchase all or any part equal to $2000 or larger integral multiples of $1000 of such holders Notes at purchase

price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes repurchased plus accrued arid unpaid interest

if any to the date of purchase subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to receive interest due

on the relevant interest payment date

CREDIT FACILITY

As of April 2011 the Credit Facility provided revolving line of credit of $325.0 million tnctuding up to $35.0 million of

letters of credit with maturity date of January 25 2016 On January 25 2011 we amended the Credit Facility to

increase our revolving line of credit from $275.0 million to $325.0 million extend the rriaturity date of the Credit Facility

from July 2012 to January 25 2016 decrease the commitment fee and the applicable margin for Eurodollar and

base rate loans under the Credit Facility and amend certain financial and other covenants to provide us with increased

flexibility Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at our option at either the highest of the Federal Funds

rate pius 0.50% Eurodollar rate plus 1.00% or the administrative agents prime rate as announced from time to time or

at the Eurodollar rate plus in the case of each of and an applicable margin that is based on the ratio of our

debt to earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization EBITDA At April 2011 the weighted average

effective interest rate on our outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility was 3.29% We have capitalized certain

amounts of interest expense on our Credit Facility in connection with the construction of ViaSat-1 related gateway and

networking equipment and other assets currently under construction The Credit Facility is guaranteed by certain of our

domestic subsidiaries and collateralized by substantially all of our respective assets The Credit Facility contains financial

covenants regarding maximum leverage ratio maximum senior secured leverage rstio and minimum interest

coverage ratio In addition the Credit Facility contains covenants that restrict among other things our ability to sell assets

make investments and acquisitions make capital expenditures grant liens pay dividends and make certain other

restricted payments At April 2011 we had $60.0 million in principal amount of outstanding borrowings under the Credit

Facility and $14.3 million outstanding under standby letters of credit leaving borrowing availability under the Credit Facility

as of April 2011 of $250.7 million

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table sets forth summary of our obligations at April 2011

hor tire tIsrai Years

in ihoasairds Toiai 2012 2013-2014 2015-2016 Thereatten

Operating leases and satellite capacity agreements 161919 35642 55402 28857 42018

Capital lease 3269 1238 2031

The Notesuui 408217 24406 48813 48813 286185

Line of credit 60000 60000

ft Standby letters ot credit 14278 14278

Purchase commitments including

el satellite-related agreements
_____________________

502378 194950 136927 97950 72551

Total 1150061 270514 $243173 $235620 400754

10 includes total artenest payments or the Notes ot $244 million in fiscal year 2012 $488 mUtton in tiscal 2013-20t4 $488 million inn fiscal 2115-2016 arid

$tt million thereatten

us



We purchase components from variety of suppliers and use several subcontractors and contract manufacturers to provide

design and manufacturing services for our products During the normal course of business we enter into agreements with

subcontractors contract manufacturers arid suppliers that either allow them to procure inventory based upon criteria

defined by us or that establish the parameters defining our requirements We have also entered into agreements with sup

pliers for the construction operation and launch of ViaSat-1 In addition we have contracted for an additional launch which

can be used as back-up launch for ViaSat-1 or for future satellite In certain instances these agreements allow us the

option to cancel reschedule and adjust our requirements based on our business needs prior to firm orders being placed

Consequently only portion of our reported purchase commitments arising
from these agreements are firm non-cancel

able and unconditional commitments

Our consolidated balance sheets included $23.8 million and $24.4 million of other liabilities as of April 2011 and April

2010 respectively which primarily consisted of our long-term warranty obligations deferred lease credits long-term

portion of deferred revenue and long-term unrecognized tax position liabilities These remaining liabilities hae been

excluded from the above table as the timing and/or the amount of any cash payment is uncertain See Note to our

consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding our income taxes and related tax positions and

Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements for discussion of our product warranties

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For discussion of Certain Relationships and Related-Party Transactions see Note 16 to our consolidated financial

statements which we incorporate herein by reference

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We had no material off-balance sheet arrangements at April 2011 as defined in Regulation S-K Item 303554 other than

as discussed under Contractual Obligations above or ctisclosed in the notes to our consolidated financial statements

included in this Annual Report

RECENT AUTHORITATIVE GUIDANCE

In October 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued authoritative guidance for revenue recognition

with multiple deliverables Accounting Standards Updates 2009-13 ASU 2009-13 which updated ASC 605-25 This new

guidance impacts the determination of when the individual deliverables included in multiple-element arrangement mey be

treated as separate units of accounting Additionally this guidance modifies the manner in which the transaction consider

ation is allocated across the separately idenfitied deliverables by no longer permitting the residual method of allocating

arrangement consideration This guidance will he effective for us beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2O12 however

early adoption is permitted We are currently evaluating the impact that the authoritative guidance may have on our consoli

dated financial statements and disclosures

In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement ASC 820 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair

Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S GAAP and IFRS5 The new authoritative guidance results in

consistent definition of fair value and common requirements for measurement of and disclosure about fair value between

U.S GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards While many of the amendments to U.S GAAP are not expected

to have significant effect on practice the new guidance changes some fair value measurement principles and disclosure

requirements This guidance will be effective for us beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012 Adoption of thms

authoritative guidance is riot expected to have material impact on our consolidated financial statements and disclosures

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

INTEREST RATE RISK

Our financial instruments consist of cash anict cash equivalents trade accounts receivable accounts payable and

short-term and long-term obligations including the Credit Facility and the Notes We consider investments in highly liquid

instruments purchased with remaining maturity of 90 days or less at the date of Purchase to be cash equivalents As of

April 2011 we had $60.0 million and $275.0 million in principal amount of outstanding borrowings under our Credit

Facility arid Notes respectively and we held no short-term investments Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest

rates relates primarily to borrowings under our Credit Facility cash equivalents short-term investments and short-tern

obligations as our Notes bear interest at fixed rate

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while at tfie same time maximizing he income we

receive from our investments wittiout sigruficantly increasing risk To mininmize ttiis risk we maintain significant portion of

our cash balance in money market funds In general money market funds are not subject to interest rate risk because the

interest paid on such funds fluctuates with ttie prevailing interest rate Our cash and cash equivalorits earn aiterest at

variable rates Oiven recent declines in interest rates our interest income has been and may continue to be negatively

impacted Fixed rate securities may have their fair market value adversely impacted due to rise in interest rates whle

floating rate securities may produce less income than expected if interest rates fall If the underlying weighted average



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS CONT

interest rate on our cash and cash equivalents assuming balances remain constant over year changed by 50 basis

points interest income would have increased or decreased by approximately $0.1 million arid $0.3 million for the fiscal

years ended April 2011 and April 2010 respectively Because our investment policy restricts us to invest in conserva

tive interest-bearing investments and because our business strategy does not rely on generating material returns from our

investment portfolio we do not expect our market risk exposure on our investment portfolio to be material

As of April 2011 we had $60.0 million in principal amount of outstanding borrowings under our Credit Facility Our

primary interest rate under the Credit Facility is the Eurodollar rate plus an applicable margin that is based on the ratio of

our debt to EBITDA As of April 2011 and April 2010 the weighted average effectve interest rate on our outstanding

borrowings under the Credit Facility was 3.29% and 4.75% respectively Assuniing the outstanding balance remained

constant over year 50 basis point increase in the interest rate would increase interest incurred prior to effects of capi

talized interest and cash flow by approximately $0.3 million for the fiscal years ended April 2011 and April 2010

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

We generally conduct our business in U.S dollars However as our international business is conducted in variety of

foreign currencies and we pay some of our vendors in Euros we are exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange

rates Our objective in managing our exposure to foreign currency risk is to reduce earnings and cash flow volatility associ

ated with foreign exchange rate fluctuations Accordingly from time to time we may enter into foreign currency forward

contracts to mitigate risks associated with foreign currency denominated assets liabilities commitments and anticipated

foreign currency transactions

As of April 2011 we had number of foreign currency forward contracts outstanding which are intended to reduce the

foreign currency risk for amounts payable to vendors in Euros The foreign currency forward contracts with notional

amount of $4.6 million had fair value of approximately $0.2 million and were recorded in other current assets as of APril

2011 The fair value of these foreign currency forward contracts as of April 2011 would have changed by approxi

mately $0.5 million if the foreign currency forward rate for the Euro to the U.S dollar on these foreign currency forward

contracts had changed by 10% As of April 2010 we had no foreign currency exchange contracts outstanding

SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY DATA UNAUDITED
The following financial information reflects all normal recurring adjustments which are in the opinion of management

necessary for the fair statement of the results for the interim periods Summarized quarterly data for fiscal years 2011 and

2010 are as follows

tin thousands except per share data 1st Quarter 2sd Qaarter 3rd Qaarter 4th Quarter

2011

Total revenues 192004 197889 195941 216372

Income from operations 7383 13073 7012 11785

Net income 3400 7801 12927 12296

Net income attributable to ViaSat Inc 3261 7786 12924 12144

Basic net income
per

share 0.08 0.19 0.31 0.29

Diluted net income per share 0.08 0.18 0.30 0.28

2010

Total revenues 158408 160666 156364 212642

Income from operations 11271 12029 1862 17848

Net income 8292 9.092 3063 10392

Net income attributable to ViaSat Inc 8.269 9175 3246 10.446

Basic net income per share 0.27 0.29 0.10 029

Diluted net income per share 0.25 0.28 0.09 0.27

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented Therefore the sum

of quarterly basic and diluted per share information may not equal annual basic and dituted earnings per share
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EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving the objective that

information in our Exchange Act reports is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods speci

fied and pursuant to the requirements of the SECs rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and commu

nicated to our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chiet Financial Officer as appropriate to allow for

timely decisions regarding required disclosures In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures man

agement recognizes that any controls and procedures no matter how well designed and operated can provide only reason

able assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating

the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures

As required by SEC Rule 13a-15b we carried out an evaluation with the participation of our management including our

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of April

2011 the end of the period covered by this Annual Report Based upon the foregoing our Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at reasonable assurance

level as of April 2011

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

We regularly review our system of internal control over financial reporting and make changes to our processes and systems

to improve controls and increase efficiency while ensuring that we maintain an effective internal control environment

Changes may include such activities as implementing new more efficient systems consolidating activities and migrating

processes During the quarter ended April 2011 there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting

that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The companys management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial report

ing as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Exchange Act Under the supervision and with the participation

of the companys management including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer the ccimpany con

ducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting based on criteria established in the

framework in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission Based on this evaluation the companys management concluded that its internal control over

financial reporting was effective as of April 2011

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

The companys independent registered public accounting firm has audited the effectiveness of the companys internal

control over financial reporting as of April 2011 as stated in their report which appears on page 58
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF VIASAT INC

In our opinion the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of operations cash

flows and equity present fairly in all material respects the financial position of ViaSat Inc and its subsidiaries at April

2011 and April 2010 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended April 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in

our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of April

2011 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible for these financial state

ments and financial statement schedule for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assess

ment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in Managements Report on Internal Control

over Financial Reporting Our resporrsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Companys

interrral control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducted our audits in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material nnsstatement

and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the

financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in tfie financial

statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an under

standing of internal-control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and eval

uating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gener

ally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and proce

dures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of the assets of the company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as neces

sary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the corripanys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

San Diego California

May 26 2011



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
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In thousands except share data

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable net

Inventories

Deferred income taxes

-__Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Satellites net

Property and equipment net

Other acquired intangible assets net

Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Currerrt liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Currerrt portion of other long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Senior Notes due 2016 net

Other long-term debt

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

As oi Aprii

2010

69631

1/6351

82962

17346

28857

305147

495689

155804

89389

5024

82499

1293552

78.355

102251

180606

271801

60000

24395

536802

545.962

218607

12027

459

753005

______
3745

756.750

1293552

c/t

As of April

2011

40490

191 889

98 555

18 805

21141

370 880

533 000

233 139

81 889

83 532

103 308

1405748

71712

130 583

1128

203r423

272 296

61 945

23 842

561 507

Commitrrierits arid contingencies Notes 11 and 12

EqLetyn

ViaSat Inc stockholders equity

Series convertible preferred stock $.0O0 par value 5000000 shares authorized

rio shares issued and outstanding at April 2011 and April 2010 respectively

Comnron stock $0001 par value 100000000 shares authorized 41664767 and

39792633 shares outstanding at April /011 and April 2010 respectively

Paid-in capital

Retained earrvngs

Connirsori stock he/f in treasury at cost 560363 and 407137 shares at April 2011 arrd

April 2010 respectively

Accusiulated other compretiensive income

Total ViaSat line stockholders equity

Noiucorirollinig interest in subsidiary

Tnita equity

Total liabilities and equity

840 125

844 241

1405748

tteecsnrparnynrng nioiss Ii iie corssiict.stcd tirnascizi iutrnjrends



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal Years Ended

in thousands except per share data

Revenues

Product revenues

Service revenues

Total revenues

Operating expenses

Cost ot product revenues

Cost of service revenues

Selling general and administrative

Independent research and development

Amortization of acquired intangible assets

Income from operations

584074 595342

104006 32837

688080 628179

408526 424620

66830 22204

132g95 98624

27325 29622

9494 8822

43010 44287

621 1463

7.354 509

36277 45241

5438 5794

30839 38447

1297 116

31136 38331

Aprii Apni

2010 2009
April

2011

523938

278268

802206

389945

160623

164265

28711

19409

39253

323

3154

36422

36424

309

36115

0.88

0.84

40858

43059

Other income expense

Interest income

Interest expense

Income before income taxes

Benefit from provision for income taxes

Net income

Less Net income loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest net of ax

Net income attributable to ViaSat Inc

Net income per
share attributable to ViaSat Inc common stockholders

Basic net income per share attributable to ViaSat Inc common stockholders

Diluted net income per share attributable to ViaSat Inc common stockholders

Shares used in computing basic net income per share

Shares used in computing diluted net incornie per share

See dccOtripvsyiflg notes te the consolidated tioancia statvoienrts

0.94

0.89

33020

34839

1.25

1.20

30772

31884

-J



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Years Ended

in thoasands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Depreciation

Amortization ot intangible assets

Stock-based compensation expense

Loss on disposition of fixed assets

Deterred income taxes

Other non-cash adustments

Increase decrease in cash resulting from changes in operating assets and liabilities

net of effects of acquisitions

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Other assets

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property equipment and satellites net

Cash paid for patents licenses and other ascets

Payments related to acquisition of businesses net of cash acquired

Change in restricted cash net

Not cash used iii investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from line of credit borrowings

Payments on line ot credit

Proceeds from issuance of Senior Notes dun 2016 net of discount

Payment of debt issuance costs

Proceeds from issuance of common stock under equity plans

Proceeds from common stock issued under public offering net of issuance costs

Purchase of common stock in treasury

Incremental tax benefits from stock-based compensation

Payment on secured borrowing

Proceeds from sale of stock of malority-owned subsidiary

Net cssh provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

Net decrease increase in cash and cash equisalenfs

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Cash paid for interest net of amounts capitalized

Cash received paid for income taxes net of refunds

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issuance of common stock in connection with acquisitions

Fair salLme of assets acquired in business combinations eacluding cash acquired

Liabilities assumed in business combinations

Issuance of stock in satisfaction of certain accrued emimployee compensation

liabilities

Equipment acquired under capital lease

Issuance of common stock in connect ion wild license right obtained

18658

9952

9837

193

5285
211

134543 117194

13796 8028
377987 925

7298

519028 126147

1500

432093 3201

529 681

26140 61685
63491 125176

89631 63491

6287 413

7784 13287

131888

536732

26857

5090

---

303

April April

2010 2009

30839 38447

37373

9582

12212

594

4229

2483

1117 9103
9367 5338
1504 2653
2965 1740

20612 2654

637 2629

112546 61942

April

2011

36424

83629

19424

17440

6999

4098
503

14138
14030

3151

6644

32441

4772

169617

208285
15986
13456

237727

40000

40000

2775
26398

5880
867

18610

359

49141
89631

40490

2797

6563

4630

22699

4613

5096

3074

$1

263000

203000
271582

12781
23085

100533

10326

10000

10000

6742

667
346

4720

See accompasyimmg soleS to ttme consolidated timiancial statements



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Is tsxssasds except share data

Balance at March 28 2008

Exercise of stock ophons

Stock-based compensation expense

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options arid release of RSU awards

Issuance of stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan

PS awards vesting

Purchase of treasury shares pursuant to vesting ot certain RSU agreements

Matority-owned subsidiary stock issuance

Other noncontrolling interest activity

Net inicoirne

Foreign currency translation net of tax

Comprehensive income

Balance at April 2009

Exercise of stock options

Issuance of stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Stock-based compensation expense

Shares issued in settlement of certain accrued employee compensation liabilities

RSU awards sesting

Purcfnase of treasury shares pursuant to vesting of certavi RSU agreements

Shares issnied
irn

connection with acquisition of business net of issuance costs

Shares repurcfnased froni lnfelsat

Shares issued in connection with license right obtained

Corrnmon stock issued under pUblic offering net of issuainco costs

Net inconno

Foreign currency translation net of tax

Comprehensive income

moo Stock

Somber of Shares issaed 4rnouot

30500605

337276

1820 2zt

94181

31114086

t019899

168640

192894

234039

4286250

10001

3173962

Balance at April 2010

Exercise of stock options

Issuance of stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Stock-based comportsation expense

Tax benefit from exorcise of stock options and release of RSU awards

Shares issued inn settlement cit certain accrued employee compensation liabilities

RSU awards vesting

PLirchase of treasury shares pursuant to vesting of certain RSU agreements

Shares issued in connection with acquisition of business net of issuance costs

Ottier nnncontrolling interest activity

Net income

Hedging transactions net of tax

Foreign currenncy translation net of tax

Comprehensive income

See uccon ipaniyirig notes ta the coosohdated tinaxcixi statements

42 225 130

40 199770

124415

59941

162870

433173

144962

cv

cv

-J
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No

ViaSat nc Stockholders

______
Oommon Stock in Treasury

Accumulated Other

Cornprebansiae Nsncontrolling Oompretiensive

Paid-in Oapital Retained Earnings Numbers Shares Amount Income Loss Interest Total incsme

255856 149140 33.238 1034 175 2289 406429

3619 -- -- 3619

9837 ---- -- -- -- 9837

667 --- 667

3123 --- -- 3123

-- -- 33730 667 -- 667
1500 1500

137 137

38331 --- 116 38447 38447

-- 302 -- 302 302

38145

273102 187471 66.968 1701 127 4042 462790

19435 -- 19435

3650 -- 3650

12212 ---- 12212

5090 -- --- -- 5090

88438 2.326 -- ---- 2.326

131637 -- --- --- 131638

--- 251731 8.000 8000
303 -- --- 303

100533 ----
-- -- 100533

-- 31136 -- -- 297 30839 30839

-- --- 586 --- 586 586

31425

545962 218607 407137 12027 459 3745 756750

22101 -- -- 22101

4.297 .- .-- --- 4297

17640 -- --- 17640

1303 -- 1303

5096 --- 5096

-- --- 153226 5880 --- 5880
4630 --- .- -- --.- --- 4630

-- 62 62

36115 309 36424 36424

182 182 182

1636 1636 1636

38242

OIOZ9 254722 56O363



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE

THE COMPANY AND SUMMARY OF ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

THE COMPANY

ViaSat Inc also referred to hereafter as the Company or ViaSat designs produces anc markets advanced innovative

satellite and other wireless communication and secure networking systems products arid services

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The Companys consolidated financial statements include the assets liabilities and results of operations of ViaSat and its

wholly owned subsidiaries and of TrellisWare Technologies Inc TrellisWare majority-owned subsidiary All significant

intercompany amounts have been eliminated

The Companys fiscal year is the 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Friday closest to March 31 of the specified year For exam

ple references to fiscal year 2011 refer to the fiscal year ending on April 2011 The Companys quarters for fiscal year

2011 ended on July 2010 October 2010 December 31 2010 and April 2011 This results in 53 week fiscal year

approximately every four to five years Fiscal years 2011 and 2010 are both 52 week years compared with 53 week year

in fiscal year 2009 As result of the shift in the fiscal calendar the second quarter of tiscal year 2009 included an addi

tional week The Company does not believe that the extra week results in any material impact on its financial results

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2011 the Company completed the acquisition of Stonewood Group Limited

Stonewood privately held company registered in England and Wales During the third quarter of fiscal year 2010 the

Company completed the acquisition of WildBlue Holding Inc WildBlue privately held Delaware corporation These

acquisitions were accounted for as purchases and accordingly the consolidated financial statements include the operating

results of Stonewood and WildBlue from the dates of acquisition see Note

On April 2009 the beginning of the Companys first quarter of fiscal year 2010 the Company adopted the authoritative

guidance for noncontrolling interests Accounting Standards Codification 810-10-65-1 ASC 810-10-65-U on prospective

basis except for the presentation and disclosure requirements which were applied retrospectively for all periods presented

As result the Company reclassified to noncontrolling interest component of equity what was previously reported as

minority interest in consolidated subsidiary in the mezzanine section of the Companys consolidated balance sheets and

reported as separate caption within the Companys consolidated statements of operations net income net income attrib

utable to the noncontrolling interest and net income attributable to ViaSat Inc In addition the Company utilized net

income which now includes noncontrolling interest as the
starting point on the Companys consolidated statements of cash

flows in order to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities These reclassifications had no effect on

previously reported consolidated income from operations net income attributable to ViaSat nc or net cash provided by

operating activities Also net income per share continues to be based on net income attributable to ViaSat Inc

MANAGEMENT ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities ansI disclosure

of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reporting period Estimates have been prepared on the basis of the most current arid best available

information and actual results could differ from those estimates Significant estimates made by management include

revenue recognition stock-based compensation self-insurance reserves allowance for doubtful accounts warranty

accrual valuation of goodwill and other intangible assets patents orbital slots and ortatal licenses software develop

ment property equipment and satellites long-lived assets derivatives contingencies and income taxes including the

valuation allowance on deferred tax assets

CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less at the date of purchase

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE UNBILLED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The Company records receivables at net realizable value including an allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts The

allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the Companys assessment of the collectability of customer accounts The

Company regularly reviews the allowance by considering factors such as historical experience credit quality the age of

accounts receivable balances and current economic conditions that may affect customers ability to pay Amounts deter

mined to be uncollectible are charged or written off against the reserve Historically the Companys allowance for doubttul

accounts has been minimal primarily because significant portion of its sales has been to the U.S government or with

respect to its satellite service commercial business the Company bills and collects in advance



Unbilled receivables consist of costs and tees earned and billable on contract completion or other specified events

Unbilled receivables are generally expected to be billed and collected within one year

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of

cash equivalents and trade accounts receivable which are generally not collateralized The Company limits its exposure to

credit loss by placing its cash equivalents with high credit quality financial institutions and investing in high quality short-

term debt instruments The Company establishes customer credit policies related to its accounts receivable based on his

torical collection experiences within the various markets in which the Company operates historical past due amounts and

any specific information that the Company becomes aware of such as bankruptcy or liquidity issues of customers

Revenues from the U.S government comprised 24.5% 30.3% and 36.0% of total revenues for fiscal years 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively Billed accounts receivable to the U.S government as of April 2011 and April 2010 were 35.3%

and 28.7% respectively of total billed receivables In addition none of the Companys commercial customers comprised

10.0% or more of total revenues for fiscal years 2011 and 2010 In fiscal year 2009 one commercial customer comprised

10.3% of total revenues and as of April
2009 represented 9.8% of total billed receivables The Companys five largest

contracts generated approximately 21.2% 25.4% and 34.8% of the Companys total revenues for the fiscal years ended

April 2011 April 2010 and April 2009 respectively

The Company relies on limited number of contract manufacturers to produce its products

INVENTORY

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market cost being determined by the weighted average cost method

PROPERTY EQUIPMENT AND SATELLITES

Equipment computers and software furniture and fixtures the Companys satellite under construction and related gateway

and networking equipment under construction are recorded at cost net of accumulated depreciation The Company com

putes depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from two to twenty-

four years Leasehold improvements are capitalized and amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the

lease term or the life of the improvement Additions to property equipment and satellites together with major renewals and

betterments are capitalized Maintenance repairs and minor renewals and betterments are charged to expense When

assets are sold or otherwise disposed of the cost and related accumulated depreciation or amortization are removed from

the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in operations

Satellite construction costs including launch services and insurance are generally procured under long-term contracts that

provide for payments over the contract periods and are capitalized as incurred The Company is also constructing gateway

facilities and network operations systems to support the satellite under construction and these construction costs are capi

talized as incurred Interest expense is capitalized on the carrying value of the satellite related gateway and networking

equipment and other assets during the construction period in accordance with the authoritative guidance for the capitaliza

tion of interest ASC 835-20 With respect to ViaSat-1 the Companys high-capacity satellite related gateway and net

working equipment and other assets currently under construction the Company capitalized $28.3 million and $8.8 million

of interest expense during the fiscal years ended April 2011 and April 2010 respectively

As result of the acquisition of WildBlue on December 15 2009 see Note the Company acquired the WiIdBlue-1 satel

lite which was placed into service in March 2007 an exclusive prepaid lifetime capital lease of Ka-band capacity over the

continental United States on Telesat Canadas Anik F2 satellite which was placed into service in April 2005 and related

gateway and networking equipment on both satellites The acquired assets also included the indoor and outdoor customer

premise equipment CPE units leased to subscribers under WiIdBlues retail leasing program The Company depreciates

the satellites gateway and networking equipment CPE units and related installation costs over their estimated useful lives

The total cost and accumulated depreciation of CPE units included in property and equipment net as of April 2011 was

$61.6 million and $19.2 million respectively The total cost and accumulated depreciation of CPE units included in prop

erty and equipment net as of April 2010 was $41.5 million and $4.2 million respectively

Occasionally the Company may enter into capital lease arrangements for various machinery equipment computer-related

equipment software furniture or fixtures As of April 2011 assets under capital leases totaled approximately $3.1 million

and there was an immaterial amount of accumulated amortization The Company had no material capital lease arrange

ments as ot April 2010 The Company records amortization of assets leased under capital lease arrangements within

depreciation expense

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The authoritative guidance for business combinations ASC 805 requires that all business combinations be accounted for

using the purchase method The authoritative guidance for business combinations also specifies criteria for recognizing and

reporting intangible assets apart from goodwill however acquired workforce must be recognized and reported in goodwill
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The authoritative guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets ASC 350 requires that intangible assets with an indefu

nite life should not be amortized until their life is determined to be finite All other intangible assets must be amortized over

their useful life The authoritative guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets prohibits the amortization of goodwill

and indefinite-lived intangible assets but instead requires these assets to be tested for impairment at least annually and

more frequently upon the occurrence of specified events In addition all goodwill must be assigned to reporting units for

purposes of impairment testing

PATENTS ORBITAL SLOTS AND OTHER LICENSES

The Company capitalizes the costs of obtaining or acquiring patents orbital slots and other icenses Amortization of

intangible assets that have finite lives is provided for by the straight-line method over the shorter of the legal or estimated

economic life Total capitalized costs of $3.2 million and $3.0 million related to patents were included in other assets as of

April 2011 and April 2010 respectively Accumulated amortization related to these patents was $0.3 million as of

each of April 2011 and April 2010 Amortization expense related to these patents was less than $0.1 million for each

of the fiscal years ended April 2011 April 2010 and April 2009 As of April 2011 and April 2010 the

Company had capitalized costs of $5.7 million and $5.2 million related to acquiring and obtaining orbital slots and other

licenses included in other assets that have not yet been placed into service If patent orbital slot or orbital license is

rejected abandoned or otherwise invalidated the unamortized cost is expensed in that period During fiscal years 2011

2010 and 2009 the Company did not write off any material costs due to abandonment or impairment

DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS

Debt issuance costs are amortized and recognized as interest expense on straight-line basis over the expected term of

the related debt which is not materially different from an effective interest rate basis During fiscal years 2011 and 2010

the Company paid and capitalized approximately $2.8 million and $12.8 million respectively in debt issuance costs related

to the Companys revolving credit facility the Credit Facility and 8.875% Senior Notes due 2016 the Notes During fiscal

year 2009 the Company did not pay or capitalize any material amounts of debt issuance costs related to the Credit Facility

Unamortized debt issuance costs are recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets and in other long-term assets

in the consolidated balance sheets depending on the amounts expected to be amortized to interest expense within the

next twelve months

SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT

Costs of developing software for sale are charged to research and development expense when incurred until technological

feasibility has been established Software development costs incurred from the time technological feasibility is reached until

the product is available for general release to customers are capitalized arid reported at the lower of unamortized cost or

net realizable value Once the product is available for general release the software development costs are amortized based

on the ratio of current to future revenue for each product with an annual minimum equal to straight-line amortization over

the remaining estimated economic life of the product generally within five years The Company capitalized $15.8 million

and $8.0 million of costs related to software developed for resale for fiscal years ended April 2011 and April 2010

respectively There was no amortization expense of software development costs during fiscal years 2011 and 2010

Amortization expense of software development costs was $1.1 million for fiscal year 2009

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS PROPERTY EQUIPMENT AND SATELLITES AND OTHER ASSETS

In accordance with the authoritative guidance for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets ASC 360 the Company

assesses potential impairments to long-lived assets including property equipment and satellites and other assets when

there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable An

impairment loss is recognized when the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by an asset or group of assets

is less than its carrying value Any required impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the assets carry

ing value exceeds its fair value and would be recorded as reduction in the carrying value of the related asset and charged

to results of operations No material impairments were recorded by the Company for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Company accounts for its goodwill under the authoritative guidance for goodwill arid other intangible asset

ASC 350 The guidance for the goodwill impairment model is two-step process First it requires comparison of the

book value of net assets to the fair value of the reporting units that have goodwill assigned to them Reporting units within

the Companys government systems commercial networks and satellite services segments have goodwill assigned to them

The Company estimates the fair values of the reporting units using discounted cash flows and other indicators of fair value

The cash flow forecasts are adjusted by an appropriate discount rate in order to deterniine The present value of the cash

flows If the fair value is determined to be less than book value second step is performed to compute the amount of the

impairment In this process fair value for goodwill is estimated based in part on the fair value of the reporting unit used

in the first step and is compared to its carrying value The shortfall of the fair value below carrying value if any represents

the amount of goodwill impairment



The forecast of future cash flows is based on the Companys best estimate of the tuture revenues and operating costs

based primarily on existing firm orders expected future orders contracts with suppliers labor agreements and general mar

ket conditions Changes in these forecasts could cause particular reporting unit to either pass or fail the first step in the

goodwill impairment model which could significantly influence whether goodwill impairment charge needs to be recorded

In accordance with the authoritative guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets Company tests goodwill for impair

ment during the fourth quarter every fiscal year and when an event occurs or circumstances change such that it is reason

ably possible that an impairment may exist No impairments were recorded by the Company related to goodwill and other

intangible assets for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

WARRANTY RESERVES

The Company provides limited warranties on its products for periods of up to five years The Company records liability for its

warranty obligations when products are shipped or they are inclLided in long-term construction contracts based upon an esti

mate of expected warranty costs Amounts expected to be incurred within twelve months are classified as current liability

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Companys financial instruments including cash equivalents short-term investments trade

receivables accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due to their short-term maturities The

estimated fair value of the Companys long-term borrowings is determined by using available market information for those

securities or similar financial instruments see Note

SELF-INSURANCE LIABILITIES

The Company has self-insurance plans to retain portion of the exposure for losses related to employee medical benefits

and workers compensation The self-insurance policies provide for both specific and aggregate stop-loss limits The

Company utilizes internal actuarial methods as well as other historical information for the purpose of estimating ultimate

costs for particular policy year Based on these actuarial methods along with currently available information and insur

ance industry statistics the Companys self-insurance liability for the plans was $1.5 million as of April 2011 and $1.4

million as of April 2010 The Companys estimate which is subject to inherent variability is based on average claims

experience in the Companys industry and its own experience in terms of frequency and severity of claims including

asserted and unasserted claims incurred but not reported with no explicit provision for adverse fluctuation from year to

year This
variability may lead to ultimate payments being either greater or less than the amounts presented above Self-

insurance liabilities have been classified as current in accordance with the estimated timing of the projected payments

SECURED BORROWING CUSTOMER ARRANGEMENTS

Occasionally the Company enters into secured borrowing arrangements in connection with customer financing in order to

provide additional sources of funding As of April 2011 and April 2010 the Company had no secured borrowing

arrangements with customers In the first quarter of fiscal year 2009 the Company paid all obligations related to its

secured borrowing under which the Company pledged note receivable from customer to serve as collateral for the

obligation under the borrowing arrangement totaling $4.7 million plus accrued interest

During fiscal year 2008 due to the customers payment default under the note receivable the Company wrote down the note

receivable by approximately $5.3 million related to the principal and interest accrued to date During the fourth quarter of

fiscal year 2009 the Company entered into certain agreements with the note receivable insurance carrier providing the

Company approximately $1.7 million in cash payments Pursuant to these agreements the Company received cash payments

totaling $2.0 million during fiscal year 2010 and as of April 2010 recorded current asset of approximately $1.0 million and

long-term asset of approximately $0.5 million During fiscal year 2011 pursuant to these agreements the Company received

additional cash payments totaling $1.2 million and as of April 2011 recorded current asset of approximately $0.5 million

INDEMNIFICATION PROVISIONS

In the ordinary course of business the Company includes indemnification provisions in certain of its contracts generally

relating to parties with which the Company has commercial relations Pursuant to these agreements the Company will

indemnify hold harmless and agree to reimburse the indemnifiad party for losses suffered or incurred by the indemnified

party including but not limited to losses relating to third-party intellectual property claims To date there have not been any

costs incurred in connection with such indemnification clauses The Companys insurance policies do not necessarily cover

the cost of defending indemnification clainis or providing indemnification so if claim was filed against the Company by

any party that the Company has agreed to indemnify fhe Company could incur substantial legal costs and damages

claim would he accrued when loss is coiisidered probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated April 2011

and April 2010 no such amounts were accrued

Simultaneously with the execution of the
mnierger agreement relating to the acquisition of WildBlue the Company entered

into an indemnification agreement dated September 30 2009 with several of the former stockholders of WildBlue pursuant

to which such former stockholders agreed to indemnify the Company for costs which result from relate to or arise out of
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potential claims and liabilities under various WildBlue contracts an existing appraisal action regarding WildBlues 2008

recapitalization certain rights to acquire securities of WildBlue and severance agreement Under the indemnification

agreement the Company is required to pay up to $0.5 million and has recorded liability of $0.5 million in the consoli

dated balance sheets as of April 2011 and April 2010 as an element of accrued liabilities

NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

noncontrolling interest represents the equity interest in subsidiary that is not attributable either directly or indirectly to the

Company and is reported as equity of the Company separately from the Companys controlling interest Revenues expenses

gains losses net income or loss and other comprehensive income are reported in the consolidated financial statements at

the consolidated amounts which include the amounts attributable to both the controlling and noncontrolling interest

In April 2008 the Companys majority-owned subsidiary TrellisWare issued additional shares of preferred stock in which

the Company invested $1.8 million in order to retain constant ownership interest As result of the transaction TrellisWare

also received $1.5 million in cash proceeds from the issuance of preferred stock to its other principal stockholders

COMMON STOCK HELD IN TREASURY

During fiscal years 2011 and 2010 the Company issued 433173 and 234039 shares of common stock respectively

based on the vesting terms of certain restricted stock unit agreements In order for employees to satisfy
minimum statutory

employee tax withholding requirements related to the issuance of common stock underlying these restricted stock unit

agreements the Company repurchased 153226 and 88438 shares of commctrr stock witfi total value of $5.9 million and

$2.3 million during fiscal year 2011 and fiscal year 2010 respectively

On January 2010 the Company repurchased 251731 shares of the Companys corrimon stock from Intelsat USA Sales

Corp for $8.0 million in cash Repurchased shares of common stock of 560363 and 407137 were held in treasury as of

April
2011 and

April 2010 respectively

DERIVATIVES

The Company enters into foreign currency forward and option contracts from time to time to hedge certain forecasted for

eign currency transactions Gains and losses arising from foreign currency forward and option contracts riot designated as

hedging instruments are recorded in other income expense as gains losses on derivative instruments Gains and losses

arising from the effective portion of foreign currency forward and option contracts which are designated as cash-flow hedg

ing
instruments are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income loss as unrealized gains losses on derivative

instruments until the underlying transaction affects the Companys earnings at which time they are then recorded in the

same income statement line as the underlying transaction

The fair values of the Companys outstanding foreign currency forward contracts as of April 2011 were as follows

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

in thausavds Baiavce Street Ciassificatian Fair vaive Balance Slicer ciasitiatiov Fair Vaiuc

DERIVATIVES DESIGNATED AS HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

Foreign currency forward contracts 82
______________

Other current assets Not applicahie
Totai derivatives desienated as hedging instruments $182

The Company had no foreign currency forward contracts outstanding as of April 20110 The notional value of foreign cur

rency forward contracts outstanding as of April 2011 was $4.6 million

The effects of foreign currency forward contracts in cash flow hedging relationships during fiscal year 2011 were as follows

Location of Gaiv or Amount of Gain or Lays

Amount vi Gain or Location at Gain or Amriouot at Gain or iLoss Recoginized in Recognized in
income on

Loss Recogmozed Loss Reclassitied Loss Reciassitied incornir on Derivative Derivative netfective

in Accumulated troni Aczurrruiated tram Accomrrulated ouffecti cc Portion ann Pam tiori arid Arnoumnt

DC air Derivatives oci into imnconne OCi iota imrcome Arniount Evcuded from Eockjded troini

ft tin thousands Ettective Portioin Ettective Portioni Ettertive Portiooi Ettectivoriess Testiogi Ettectiveriess iestingt_______ -. _____
DERIVATIVES IN CASH FLOW

HEDGING RELATIONSHIPS

Foreign currency forward contracts 182
Cost of product

857

Total 182 revenues
Not applicable

During fiscal year 2010 the Company did not settle any foreign currency forward contracts



an

so

The effects of foreign currency forward contracts in cash flow hedging relationships during tiscal year 2009 were as follows

Location of Gain or Amount of Gain or Loss

Amount of Gain or Location of Goirn or Amonnit of Gaur or Loss Rocognized in Recognized in Income

Loss Recogiuzed Loss Reclassified Loss Reclassified income on Denioatioe on Drnioatioe Insffectioe

in Accumulated froni Acconniulated from Accumulated irreffectioe Portion and Portion and Arnoant

Gd on Oenioatiorrs CCI into Inconne CCI into nconne Amount Excluded from EoclLoled fronr

in thousands Effective Portion Eftectioe Portion Effective Portion Effectiveness Testing Efecfioeness Testing

DERIVATIVES IN CASH FLOW

HEDGING RELATIONSHIPS

Foroign currency forword contracts
Cost cn rod oct

268
Not applicable

Tofa rEnvenuos 268

At April 2011 the estimated net existing income that is expected to be reclassified into income within the next twelve

months is approximately $0.2 million Foreigrt currency forward contracts usually mature within approximately twelve

months from their inception There were no gains or losses from ineffectiveness of these derivative instruments recorded

for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

FOREIGN CURRENCY

In general the functional currency of foreign operation is deemed to be the local countrys currency Consequently assets

and liabilities of operations outside the United States are generally translated into U.S dollars and the effects of foreign

currency translation adjustments are included as component of accumulated other comprehensive income loss within

ViaSat Inc stockholders equity

REVENUE RECOGNITION

substantial portion of the Companys revenues are derived from long-term contracts requiring development and delivery

of complex equipment built to customer specifIcations Sales related to long-term contracts are accounted for under the

authoritative guidance for the percentage-of-completion method of accounting ASC 605-35 Sales and earrungs under

these contracts are recorded either based on the ratio of actual costs incurred to date to total estimated costs expected to

be Incurred related to the contract or as products are shipped under the units-of-delivery method Anticipated losses on

contracts are recognized in full in the period in which losses become probable and estimable Changes in estimates of

profit or loss on contracts are included in earnings on cumulative basis in the period the estimate is changed

In June 2010 the Company performed extensive integration testing of numerous system components that had been sepa

rately developed as part of government communication program As result ot this testing and subsequent inter

nal reviews and analyses the Company determined that significant additional rework was required in order to complete the

program requirements and specifications and to prepare for scheduled customer test in the Companys fiscal second

quarter This additional rework and engineering effort resulted in substantial increase in estimated labor and material

costs to complete the program Accordingly the Company recorded an additional forward loss of $8.5 million in the three

months ended July 2010 related to this estimate of program costs While the Company believes the additional forward

loss is adequate to cover known risks to date and that steps taken to improve the program performance will he effective

the program is ongoing and the Companys efforts and the end results must be satisfactory to the customer The Company

believes that its estimate of costs to complete the program is appropriate based on known information however additional

future losses could he required Including this program in fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company tecorded losses

of approximately $12.1 million $9.3 million and $5.4 million respectively related to loss contracts

The Company also derives substantial portiort of its revenues from contracts and purchase orders where revenue is

recorded on delivery of products or performance of services in accordance with authoritative guidance for revenue recogni

tion ASC 605 Under this standard the Company recognizes revenue when an arrangement exists prices are determin

able collectability is reasonably assured and the goods or services have been delivered

The Company also enters into certain leasing arrangements with customers and evaluates the contracts in accordance with

the authoritative guidance for leases ASC 840 The Companys accounting for equipment leases involves specific determi

nations under the authoritative guidance for leases which often involve complex provisions and significant judgments In

accordance with the authoritative guidance for leases the Company classities the transactions as sales type or operating

leases based on review for transfers of ownership of the property to the lessee by the end of the lease term review

ot the lease terms to determine if it contains an option to purchase the leased property for price which is sufficiently

lower than the expected fair value of the property at the date of the option review of the lease term to determine it
it

is

equal to or greater than 75% of the economic life of the equipment and review of the present value of the minimum

lease payments to determine it they are equal to or greater than 90% of the fair market value of the equipment at the

inception of the lease Additionally the Company considers the cancelability of the contract and any related uncertainty of

collections or risk in recoverability of the lease investment at lease inception Revenue from sales type leases is recognized
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at the inception ot the lease or when the equipment has been delivered and installed at the customer site if installation is

required Revenues from equipment rentals under operating leases are recognized as earned over the lease term which is

generally on straight-line basis

When sale involves multiple elements such as sales of products that include services the entire fee from the arrange

ment is allocated to each respective element based on its relative tair value in accordance with authoritative guidance for

accounting for multiple element revenue arrangements ASC 605-25 and recognized when the applicable revenue recog

nition criteria for each element have been met The amount of product and service revenue recognized is impacted by the

Companys judgments as to whether an arrangement includes multiple elements and if so whether sutficient objective and

reliable evidence of fair value exists for those elements Changes to the elements in an arrangement and the Companys

ability to establish evidence of fair value tor those elements could affect the timing of the revenLie recognition

In accordance with authoritative guidance for shipping and handling fees and costs ASC 605-45 the Company records

shipping and handling costs billed to customers as component of revenues and shipping and handling costs incurred by

the Company for inbound and outbound freight are recorded as component of cost of revenues

Collections in excess of revenues and deferred revenues represent cash collected from customers in advance of revenue

recognition and are recorded in accrued liabilities for obligations within the next twelve months Amounts for obligations

extending beyond the twelve months are recorded within other liabilities in the consolidated financial statements

Contract costs on U.S government contracts are subject to audit and negotiations with U.S government representatives

The Companys incurred cost audits by the DCAA have not been completed for fiscal year 2003 and subsequent fiscal

years Although the Company has recorded contract revenues subsequent to fiscal year 2002 based upon an estimate ot

costs that the Company believes will be approved upon final audit or review the Company does not know the outcome of

any ongoing or future audits or reviews and adjustments and if future adjustments exceed the Companys estimates its

protitability
would be adversely affected In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011 based on recent events including corn

munications with the DCMA changes in the regulatory environment for federal government contractors and the status of

current government audits the Company recorded an additional $5.0 million in contract-related reserves for its estimate of

potential refunds to customers for potential cost adjustments on several multi-year U.S government cost reimbursable con

tracts bringing the Companys total reserve to $6.7 million as of April 2011 This reserve is classified as either an ele

mont of accrued liabilities or as reduction of unbilled accounts receivable based on status of related contracts

COMMISSIONS

We compensate third parties based on specific commission programs directly related to ceitain product and service sales

These commission costs are recorded as an element ot selling general and adrninistraive expense as incurred

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In accordance with the authoritative guidance for share-based payments ASC 718 the Company measures stock-based

compensation cost at the grant date based on the estimated fair value ot the award and recognizes expense over the

employees requisite service period Stock-based compensation expense is recognized in the consolidated statement of

operations for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 only tor those awards ultimately expected to vest with forfeitures esti

mated at the date of grant The authoritative guidance for share-based payments requires forfeitures to be estimated at the

time of grant and revised if necessary in subsequent periods if actual forteitures differ from those estimates

Total stock-based compensation expense recognized in accordance with the authoritative guidance for share-based

payments was as follows

iscai Years Esded

us thousasds

Stock-based compensation expense before taxes

Releted income tax benefits

Stock-based compensabon Experrse rret of taxes

uJ

-J

xx

xx

Aprii

2011

17440

6511

1092l9

/\prii Cpu

2010 2009

12212 9837

4429 3.518

7783 6319

For fiscal year 2011 the Company recorded an incremental tax benefit from stock options exercised and restricted stock

unit awards vesting of $0.9 million which was classified as part of cash flows from financing activities in the cortsolidated

statements of cash flows For fiscal year 2010 the Company recorded no incremental tax benefits from stock options exer

cised and restricted stock unit award vesting as the excess tax benefit from stock options exercised and restricted stock

unit award vesting increased the Companys net operating loss carryforward For fiscal year 2009 the Company recorded

an incremental tax benefit from stock options exercised and restricted stock umtit awards vesting of $0.3 million which was

classified as part of cash flows from financing activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows



The Company has no awards with market or performance conditions On April 2011 the Company had one principal

equity compensation plan and employee stock purchase plan described below The compensation cost that has been

charged against income for the equity plan under the authoritative guidance for share-based payments was $16.2 million

$10.9 million and $8.7 million and for the stock purchase plan was $1.2 million $1.3 million and $1.1 million for the fiscal

years ended April 2011 April 2010 and April 2009 respectively There was no material compensation cost capital

ized as part of the cost of an asset for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

As of April 2011 there was total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock-based compensation

arrangements granted under the Equity Participation Plan including stock options and restricted stock units and the

Employee Stock Purchase Plan of $47.2 million and $0.3 million respectively These costs are expected to be recognized

over weighted average period of 2.5 years 2.7 years and less than six months for stock options restricted stock units and

the Employee Stock Purchase Plan respectively The total fair value of shares vested during the fiscal years ended April

2011 April 2010 and April 2009 including stock options and restricted stock units was $15.3 million $9.3 million

and $6.3 million respectively

Stock Options And Employee Stock Purchase P/an The Companys employee stock options typically have simple four-

year vesting schedule and six to ten year contractual term The weighted average estimated fair value of employee

stock options granted and employee stock purchase plan shares issued during fiscal year 2011 was $14.24 and $8.55

per share respectively during fiscal year 2010 was $10.55 and $7.84 per share respectively and during fiscal year

2009 was $7.24 and $6.70 per share respectively using the Black-Scholes model with the following weighted average

assumptions annualized percentages

Employee Stock Options Empioyve Stock Prcchase Plan

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscai Year Fisc3i Year

2010 2009 2010 2009

Volattity
43.0% 38.9% 43.72 54.6%

Risk-free interest rate 1.6% 2.7% 0.3% 12%

Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0%

WWgbted average expected life 4.2 years 4.1 years 0.5 yevrs 0.5 years

The Companys expected volatility is measure of the amount by which its stock price is expected to fluctuale over the

expected term of the stock-based award The estimated volatilities for stock options are based on the historical volatility cal

culated using the daily stock price of the Companys stock over recent historical period equal to the expected term The

risk-free interest rate that the Company uses in determining the fair value of its stock-based awards is based on the implied

yield on U.S Treasury zero-coupon issues with remaining terms equivalent to the expected term of its stock-based awards

The expected life of employee stock options represents the calculation using the simplified method consistent with the

authoritative guidance for share-based payments Due to significant changes in the Companys option terms in October of

2006 the Company Will continue to use the simplified method until it has the historical data necessary to provide reason

able estimate of expected life For the expected option life the Company has plain-vanilla stock options and therefore

used simple average of the vesting period and the contractual term for options as permitted by the authoritative guidance

for share-based payments The expected term or life of employee stock purchase rights issued represents the expected

period of time from the date of grant to the estimated date that the stock purchase right under the Compariys Employee

Stock Purchase Plan would be fully exercised

summary of employee stock option activity for fiscal year 2011 is presented below

Weighted Average Weighted Average Agregate

Evercise Price Remaining intrinsic Vaiue

Number of Si ares per Share Cootraciuai Term Sri thousands

Outstanding at April 2010 4.718176 20.90

Options granted 266250

Options canceled t20543

Options exercised 11124415

41.26

27.40

19.60

2050

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during fiscal years 2021 2010 and 2009 was $21.3 million $11.3 million

and $3.9 million respectively

OutstandIng at AprIl 2011

Vested and exercIsable at April 2011

339458

3I3I 456
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Restricted Stock Units Restricted stock units represent right to receive shares of common stock at tLiture date deter

mined in accordance with the participants award agreement There is no exercise price and no monetary payment

required for receipt of restricted stock units or the shares issued in settlement of the award Instead consideration is fur

nished in the form of the participants services to the Company Restricted stock units generally vest over four years and

have six-year contractual term Compensation cost for these awards is based on the tair value on the date of grant arid

recognized as compensation expense on straight-line basis over the requisite service period For fiscal years 2011 2010

and 2009 the Company recognized $12.6 million $7.4 million and $4.8 million respectively in stock-based compensation

expense related to these restricted stock unit awards

The per unit weighted average grant date fair value of restricted stock units granted during tiscal years 2011 2010 and

2009 was $41.48 $29.19 and $20.41 respectively summary of restricted stock unit activity for fiscal year 2011 is

presented below

Weighied Averogc Reicioioieg Aggrogais intriosic Voiue

Restricted Stock Undo CoetractLori Torro is Yecro is tiroooaodoi

Outstanding at April 2010 1.389615

Awarded 630056
Forfeited 37035
Released 1433173

Outstanding at April 2011

Vested and deferred at April 2011

1549463

41 467

60661

1623

During fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 433173 restricted stock units vested with total intrinsic value of $16.7 million

234039 restricted stock units vested with total intrinsic value of $6.2 million and 94181 restricted stock units vested

with total intrinsic value of $1.9 million respectively

INDEPENDENT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Independent research and development IRD which is not directly funded by third party is expensed as incurred

IRD expenses consist primarily of salaries and other personnel-related expenses supplies prototype materials and other

expenses related to research and development programs

RENT EXPENSE DEFERRED RENT OBLIGATIONS AND DEFERRED LEASE INCENTIVES

The Company leases all of its facilities under operating leases Some of these lease agreements contain tenant improve

ment allowances funded by landlord incentives rent holidays and rent escalation clauses GAAP requires rent expense to

be recognized on straight-line basis over the lease term The difference between the rent due under the stated periods of

the lease compared to that of the straight-line basis is recorded as deferred rent within accrued and other long-term liabili

ties in the consolidated balance sheet

For purposes of recognizing landlord incentives and minimum rental expenses on straight-line basis over the terms of the

leases the Company uses the date that it obtains the legal right to use and control the leased space to begin amortization

which is generally when the Company enters the space and begins to make improvements in preparation of occupying new

space For tenant improvement allowances funded by landlord incentives and rent holidays the Company records

deferred lease incentive liability in accrued and other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet arid amortizes

the deferred liability as reduction to rent expense on the consolidated statement of operations over the term of the lease

Certain lease agreements contain rent escalation clauses which provide for scheduled rent increases during the lease term

or for rental payments commencing at date other than the date of initial occupancy Such increasing rent expense is

recorded in the consolidated statement of operations on straight-line basis over the lease term

At April 2011 and April 2010 deferred rent included in accrued liabilities in the Companys consolidated balance

sheets was $0.6 million and $0.5 million respectively and deferred rent included in other long-term liabilities in the

Companys consolidated balance sheets was $6.3 million and $6.1 million respectively

INCOME TAXES

Accruals for uncertain tax positions are provided for in accordance with the authoritative guidance for accounting for uncer

tainty in income taxes ASC 740 The Company may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is

more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities based on the technical

merits of the position The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such position should be measured

cs based on the largest benefit that has greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement The authori

tative guidance for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes also provides guidance on derecognition of income tax

assets and liabilities classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities accounting for interest and



penalties associated with tax positions and income tax disclosures The Companys policy is to recognize intarest expense

and penalties related to income tax matters as component of income tax expense

Current income tax expense is the amount of income taxes expected to be payable for the current year deferred income

tax asset or liability is established tor the expected future tax consequences resulting from differences in the financial

reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and for the expected future tax benetit to be derived from tax credit and

loss carryforwards Deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation allowance when in the opinion of management it is

more likely than not that some portion or all nt the deterred tax assets will not be realized Deterred income tax expense

benefit is the net change during the year in the deferred income tax asset or liability

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the

period Diluted earnings per share is based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and rioten

tial common stock if dilutive during the period Potential common stock includes options granted and restricted stock units

awarded under the Companys equity compensation plan which are included in the earnings per share calculations using

the treasury stock method common shares expected to be issued under the Companys employee stock purchase plan

other conditions denoted in the Companys agreements with the predecessor stockholders of certain acquired companies

at April 2009 and shares potentially issuable under the amended ViaSat 401k Profit Sharing Plan in connection with

the Companys decision to pay discretionary match in common stock or cash

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Companys government systems commercial networks and satellite services segments are primarily distinguished by

the type of customer and the related contractual requirements The Companys government systems segment develops and

produces network-centric IP-based secure government communications systems products and solutions The more regu

lated government environment is subject to unique contractual requirements and possesses economic characteristics

which differ from the commercial networks and satellite services segments The Companys commercial networks segment

develops and produces variety of advanced end-to-end satellite communication systems and ground networking equip

ment and products The Companys satellite services segment complements both the government systems and commercial

networks segments by providing wholesale and retail satellite-based broadband internet services in the United States via

the Companys satellite and capacity agreements as well as managed network services for the satellite communication sys

tems of the Companys consumer enterprise and mobile broadband customers The Companys satellite seraices segment

includes the Companys WildBlue business which it acquired inn
December 2009 and the Companys ViaSat-1 satellite-

related activities The Companys segments are determined consistent with the way management currently organizes and

evaluates financial information internally for making operating decisions and assessing performance

RECENT AUTHORITATIVE GUIDANCE

In October 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued authoritative guidance for revenue recognition

with multiple deliverables Accounting Standards Updates 209-13 ASU 2009-13 which updated ASC 60525 This new

guidance impacts the determination of when the individual deliverables included in multiple-element arrangement nay be

treated as separate units of accounting Additionally this guidance modifies the manner in which the transaction consider

ation is allocated across the separately identified deliverables by no longer permitting the residual method ot allocating

arrangement consideration This guidance will be effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of hscal year

2O12 however early adoption is permitted The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the authoritative guidance

may have on its consolidated tinancial statements and disclosures

In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement ASC 820 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair

Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S GAAP and IFRSs The new authoritative guidance results in

consistent definition of fair value and common requirements for measurement of and disclosure about fair vilue between

U.S GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards While many of the amendments to U.S GAAP ire not

expected to have significant effect on practice the new guidance changes some fair value measurement principles arid

disclosure requirements This guidance is effecfive.for the Company beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012

Adoption of this authoritative guidance is not expected to have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements and disclosures
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NOTE

COMPOSITION OF CERTAIN BALANCE SHEET CAPTIONS

in thousands

Accounts receivable net

Billed

Unbilled

Allowance for doubtlul accounts

riventories

Raw materials

Work in process

Finished goods

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Prepaid expenses

lucerne tax receivable

Other___________ ________ _________

Satellites net

SatelliteWildBlue-1 estimated useful lite of 10 years

Capital lease of satellite capacity ---Anik F2 estimated useful life of 10 years

Safellite under construction

Less accumulated depreciation and arnorbzation

Property and equipment net

Machinery and equipmenl estimated useful life of 2-5 years

Computer equipment and software estimated useful life of 2-7 years

CPE leased equipment estimated useful life of 3-5 years

Furniture and fixtures evtimated useful life of years

Leasehold improverrients estimated useful life of 2-11 years

Building esfimated useful life of 24 years

Land

Construction in progress

accumulated depreciation and amortization

Other assets

Capitalized software costs net

Patents orbital slots and other licenses net

Deferred income faxes

Other
_________________________

Accrued liabilities

Warranty reserve current portion

Accrued vacation

Accrued employee compensation

Collections in excess of revenues and deterred revenues

Otfier
_________

-J

Other liabilities

Warranty reserve long-term portion

Deferred rent long-farm portion

Deterred revenue long-term portion

Deterred income faxes long-term portion

Unrecognized fax pusifion liabilities

Other
______

April 2011

100863

91519

493

Apni 2010

93737

83153

539

EIIJ 176351

46651

18713

33191

98555

18235
26

2880

21141

195890

99090

276418

571398

38398

533000

122113
66768

61610
13053

24550
8923

4384

80976

382377
149238

233139

24472

8639

47017

23180

103308

8014

15600

18804

61916

26249

130583

4928

6267

6960

3374

2217
96

23842

36255

21345

25362

82962

13239

9022

6596

28857

195890

99090

209432

504412

8723

495689

96484
55384

41469

10760

20119

8923

4384

--
18578

256101

100297

155804

8683

7954

44910

20952

82499

6410

13437

17268

46180

18956

102251

4798

6127

4S84

2644
6242

24395
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NOTE3

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with the authoritative guidance for financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring

basis ASC 820 the Company prioritizes the inputs used to rrieasure fair value from market-based assumptions to

entity specific assumptions

Level 1Inputs based on quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets at the

measurement date

Level 2Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level such as quoted prices for similar assets and

liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active or

other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data

Level 3Inputs which reflect managements best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the asset or

liability at the measurement date The inputs are unobservable in the market and significant to the instruments valuation

Effective April 2009 the Company adopted the authoritative guidance for non-financial assets and liabilities that are remea

sured at fair value on non-recurring basis without material Lmpact on its consolidated financial statements and disclosures

The following tables present the Companys hierarchy for its assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis

as of April 2011 and April 2010

in tbousandv

Assets

Cash equivalents

Foreign currency forward contracts

Total assets measured at fair value on recurrwg basis

tiwvserids

Assets

Cash equivalents

Total assets measured at fair value sri recurring basis

Fair Valve

at Aprii

2010 Level Lesei Level

14810 14810 --

14810 14820

The following section describes the valuation methodologies the Company uses to measure financial instruments at fair value

Cash equivalents- The Companys cash equivalents consist of money market funds Money market funds are valued using

quoted prices tor identical assets in an active market with sufticient volume and frequency of transactions Level

Foretgn currency forward exchange contractsThe Corripany uses derivative financial instruments to manaqe foreign

currency risk relating to foreign exchange rates The Company does not use these instruments for speculative or trading

purposes The Companys objective is to reduce the risk to earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign

currency exchange rates Derivative instrunients are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the accompanying

consolidated financial statements and are measured at fair value Gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair values

of those derivative instruments are recorded to earnings or other comprehensive income loss depending on the use of the

derivative instrument and whether it qualities for hedge accounting The Companys foreign currency forward contracts are

valued using quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or other inputs that are observable or can be

corroborated by observable market data

Long-term debt--The Companys long-term debt consists of borrowings under the Credit Facility reported at the borrowed

outstanding amourtt capital lease obligations reported at the present value of future minimum lease payments with current

accrued interest and the Notes reported at amortized cost However for disclosure purposes the Company is required to

measure the fair value of outstanding debt on recurring basis The fair value of the Companys outstanding long-term debt

related to the Notes is determined using quoted prices in active markets and was approximately $293.6 million and $281.2

million as of April 2011 and April 2010 respectively The fair value of the Companys long-term debt related to the

Credit Facility approximates its carrying amount due to its variable interest rate on the revolving line of credit which approxi

mates market interest rate The fair value of the Companys capital lease obligations is estimated at their carrying volue

based on current rates
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NOTE

GOODWILL AND ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

During fiscal year 2011 the Companys goodwill increased by approximately $8.5 million net of which $7.4 million was

related to the acquisition of Stonewood recorded within the Companys government systems segment In addition the

Company recorded $0.4 million increase to goodwill primarily for the tax effect of certain pre-acquisition net operating

loss carryovers with corresponding adjustment to deferred tax assets within the Companys satellite services segment

The Company also recorded $0.5 million decrease to goodwill for the tax effect of certain pro-acquisition net ciperating

loss carryovers with corresponding adjustment to deferred tax liabilities within the Cornparys government systems seg

ment The remaining change relates to the effect of foreign currency translation recorded within the Companys government

systems and commercial networks segments

The other acquired intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of eight

months to ten years Amortization expense related to other acquired intangible assets was $19.4 million $9.5 million and

$8.8 million for the fiscal years ended April 2011 April 2010 and April 2009 respectively

The expected amortization expense of amortizable acquired intangible assets
rriay change due to the effects of foreign

currency fluctuations as result of the international businesses acquired Expected amortization expense for acquired

intangible assets for each of the following periods is as follows

us tiousarrcis Arrrrriizaiiee

Expected for fiscal year 2012

Expected for fiscal year
2013

Expected for fiscal year 2014

Expected for fiscai year 2015

Expected for fiscal year 2016

Thereafter

fhe allocation of the other acquired intangible assets and the related accumulated amortization as of April 2011 and

April 2010 is as follows

18735

15623

t3879

13803

10203

9646

81889

As of April 2011

fin thousands

Technology

Contracts and customer relationships

Non-compete agreements

Sateilite co-location rights

Trade name

Other

Weighted

Asersge

Usetsi Lite

at Ar.rii 20t0

Pr tiiotisarrdl

Totai other acquired intangible assets

Ar. rrnxiated Net Br ok

Joist Amrrrtiatisn Vair re

44552 39.147 5405

86707 17184 69523

9098 8870 228

8600 1270 8.330

5680 552 5128

9.326 8551 775

$163963 74574 89.389



NOTE5

SENIOR NOTES AND OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT

Total long-term debt consisted of the following as of April 2011 and April 2010

in thousairds

SENIOR NOTES DUE 2016 THE NOTESI

Notes

Unamortized discount on the Notes

Total Notes net ot discount

Less current portion of the Notes

Total Notes long-term net

OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT

Line of credit

Capital lease obligations due fiscal years 2014 to 2015 weighted sverane interest rate of 469%

Total other long-term debt 60000

Less current portion of other long-term debt
___________________ __________

Other long-term debt net 60000

Total debt 331801

Less- current portion

Long-term debt net 33801

The aggregate payments on the Companys long-term debt obligations excluding the effects of discount accretion on its

$275.0 million of Notes and required interest payments on the Credit Facility as of April 2011 were as follcws

For the Fiscai Yearr

lie tiiousandst

2012 1238

2013 1308

2014 723

2015

2016 50000

Thereafter 275000

338269

Less imputed interest 195

Lees mnamortized discount on Ihe Notes 2704

Total 335370

SENIOR NOTES DUE 2016

On October 22 2009 the Company issued $275.0 million in principal amount of Notes in
private placement to institu

tional buyers which Notes were exchanged in May 2010 for substantially identical Notes that had been registered with the

SEC The Notes bear interest at the rate of 8.875% per year payable semi-annually in cash in arrears which interest pay

ments commenced in March 2010 The Notes were issued with an original issue discount of 1.24% or $3.4 million The

Notes are recorded as long-term debt net of original issue discount in the Companys consolidated financial statements

The original issue discount and deferred financing cost associated with the issuance of the Notes is amortized to interest

expense on straight-line basis over the term of the Notes

The Notes are guaranteed on an unsecured senior basis by each of the Companys existing and future subsidiaries that

guarantees the Credit Facility the Guarantor Subsidiaries The Notes and the guarantees are the Companys and the

Guarantor Subsidiaries general senior unsecured obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of the Companys

existing and future Linsecured unsubordinafed debt The Notes and the guarantees are effectively junior in ri4ht of payment

to their existing and future seci.ired debt including under the Credit Facility to the extent of the value of the assets securing

such debt are structurally subordinated to at existIng and future lIabilIties including trade payables of the Companys

subsidiaries that are not guarantors of the Notes and are senior in right of payment to all of their existing anti future

subordinated indebtedness

As of April

2010

27 .000

3199

271.801

271801
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The indenture agreement governing the Notes limits among other things the Companys and its restricted subsidiaries

ability to incur assume or guarantee additional debt issue redeemable stock and preferred stock pay dividends make

distributions or redeem or repurchase capital stock prepay redeem or repurchase subordinated debt make loans and

nvestments grant or incur liens restrict dividends loans or asset transfers from restricted subsidiaries sell or otherwise

dispose of assets enter into transactions with affiliates reduce the Companys satellite insurance and consolidate or merge

with or sell substantially all of their assets to another person

Prior to September 15 2012 the Company may redeem up to 35% of the Notes at redemption price of 108.875% ot the

principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest if any thereon to the redemption date from the net cash pro

ceeds of specified equity offerings The Company may also redeem the Notes prior to September 15 2012 in whole or in

part at redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus the applicable premium and any accrued

and unpaid interest if any thereon to the redemption date The applicable premium is calculated as the greater of 1.0%

of the principal amount of such Notes and ii the excess if any of the present value at such date of redemption of

the redemption price of such Notes on September 15 2012 plus all required interest payments due on such Notes

through September 15 2012 excluding accrued but unpaid interest to the date of redemption computed using discount

rate equal to the treasury rate as defined under the indenture plus 50 basis points over the then-outstanding principal

amount of such Notes The Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time during the twelve months beginning

on September 15 2012 at redemption price of 106.556% during the twelve months beginning on September 15 2013

at redemption price of 104.438% during the twelve months beginning on September 15 2014 at redemption price of

102.219% and at any time on or after September 12 2015 at redemption price of 100% in each case plus accrued and

unpaid interest if any thereon to the redemption date

In the event change of control occurs as defined under the indenture each holder will have the right tr require the

Company to repurchase all or any part equal to $2000 or larger integral multiples of $1000 of such holders Notes at

purchase price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes repurchased plus accrued and

unpaid interest if any to the date of purchase subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to

receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date

CREDIT FACILITY

As of
April 2011 the Credit Facility provided revolving line of credit of $325.0 million including up to $35.0 million of

letters of credit with maturity date of January 25 2015 On January 25 2011 the Company amended the Credit Facility

to increase the Companys revolving line of credit from $275.0 million to $325.0 million extend the maturity date of

the Credit Facility from July 2012 to January 25 2016 decrease the commitment fee and the applicable margin for

Eurodollar and base rate loans under the Credit Facility and amend certain financial and other covenants to provide the

Company with increased flexibility Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at the Companys option at either

the highest of the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50% the Eurodollar rate plus 1.00% or the administrative agents prime rate

as announced from time to time or at the Eurodollar rate plus in the case of each of and an applicable margin

that is based on the ratio of the Companys debt to earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization EBITDA
At April 2011 the weighted average effective interest rate on the Companys outstanding borrowings under the Credit

Facility was 3.29% The Company has capitalized certain amounts of interest expense on the Credit Facility in connection

with the construction of ViaSat-1 related gateway and networking equipment and other assets currently under construction

The Credit Facility is guaranteed by certain of the Companys domestic subsidiaries and collateralized by substantially all of

the Companys and the Guarantor Subsidiaries assets

The Credit Facility contains financial covenants regarding maximum leverage ratio maximum senior secured leverage

ratio and minimum interest coverage ratio In addition the Credit Facility contains covenants that restrict among other

things the Companys ability to sell assets make investments and acquisitions make capital expenditures grant liens pay

dividends and make certain other restricted payments

The Company was in compliance with its financial covenants under the Credit Facility as of April 2011 At April 2011

the Company had $60.0 million in principal amount of outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility and $14.3 million

outstanding under standby letters of credit leaving borrowing availability under the Credit Facility as of April 2011 of

$250.7 million

CAPITAL LEASES

Occasionally the Company may enter into capital lease agreements for various machinery equipmerrt computer-related

equipment software furniture or fixtures As of April 2011 the Company had approximately $3.1 million outstanding

under capital leases payable over weighted average period of 36 months These ease agreements bear interest at

weighted average rate of 4.69% and can be extended on month-to-month basis after the original term The Company had

no material capital lease arrangements as of April 2010

cc



NOTE6
_________ ____

COMMON STOCK AND STOCK PLANS

On March 31 2010 the Company and certain former WiIdBIue equity and debt holders the WildBlue Investors

completed the sale of an aggregate of 6900000 shares of ViaSat common stock in an underwritten public offering

3173962 of which were sold by the Company and 3726038 of which were sold by such WildBlue Investors The

Companys net proceeds from the offering were approximately $100.5 million after deducting underwriting discounts

and estimated offering expenses The shares sold by such WildBlue Investors in the offering constituted shares of ViaSat

common stock issued to such WildBlue Investors in connection with the Companys acquisition of WildBlue On April

2010 the Company used $80.0 million of the net proceeds to repay outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility

The remaining net proceeds from the offering were used for general corporate purposes

In March 2010 the Company filed universal shelf registration statement with the SEC for the future sale of an

unlimited amount of debt securities common stock preferred stock depositary shares warrants and rights The

securities may be offered from time to time separately or together directly by the Company by selling secunfy holders

or through underwriters dealers or agents at amounts prices interest rates and other terms to be determinod at the

time of the offering

In November 1996 the Company adopted the 1996 Equity Participation Plan The 1996 Equity Participation Plan pro

vides for the grant to executive officers other key employees consultants and non-employee directors of the Company

broad variety of stock-based compensation alternatives such as nonqualified stock options incentive stock options

restricted stock units and performance awards From November 1996 to September 2010 through various amendments

of the 1996 Equity Participation Plan the Company ncreased the maximum number of shares reserved for issuance

under this plan from 2500000 shares to 17400000 shares The Company believes that such awards better align the

interests of its employees with those of its stockholders Shares of the Companys common stock granted under the Plan

in the form of stock options or stock appreciation right are counted against the Plan share reserve on one for one

basis Shares of the Companys common stock granted under the Plan as an award other than as an option or as stock

appreciation right with per share purchase price lower than 100% of fair market value on the date of grant are counted

against the Plan share reserve as two shares for each share of common stock up to September 22 2010 and subse

quently as 2.65 shares for each share of common stock Restricted stock units are granted to eligible employees and

directors and represent rights to receive shares of common stock at future date As of April 2011 the Company had

granted options and restricted stock units net of cancellations to purchase 8962233 and 2405021 shares of com
mon stock respectively under the Plan

In November 1996 the Company adopted the ViaSat Inc Employee Stock Purchase Plan the Employee Stock

Purchase Plan to assist employees in acquiring stock ownership interest in the Company and to encourage them to

remain in the employment of the Company The Employee Stock Purchase Plan is intended to quality under Section 423

of the Internal Revenue Code In July of 2009 the Company amended the Employee Stock Purchase Plan fri increase

the maximum number of shares reserved for issuance under this plan from 1500000 shares to 2250000 shares The

Employee Stock Purchase Plan permits eligible employees to purchase common stock at discount through payroll

deductions during specified six-month offering periods No employee may purchase more than $25000 worth of stock

in any calendar year The price of shares purchased under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is equal to 85% of the

fair market value of the common stock on the first or last day of the offering period whichever is lower As of April

2011 the Company had issued 1710854 shares of common stock under this plan
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Transactions related to the Companys stock options are summarized as follows

All options issued under the Companys stock option plans have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the

Companys stock on the date of the grant

The following table summarizes all options outstanding and exercisable by price range as of April 2011

Range of Exercise Prices

5.03$ 12.76

13.01 18.25

18.41-- 18.41

18.73 18.73

18.97 20.95

21.02 23.37

23 66-- 25.88

26.15 26.15

26.63 29.45

30.37- 41.52

5.03$41.52

387292

546376

3500

470315

392366

387669

214317

501438

440350

495845

3839468

Number

Exercivah

179 10.36 387292

1.61 15.31 546376

67 18.41 3500

3.52 18.73 470315

3.12 20.22 270866

3.73 21.62 387669

2.62 24.60 199967

1.52 26.15 501438

4.39 28.91 169200

4.05 36.91 194.833

2.91 22.66 3131456

Wnghted Average

Exercise Price

10.36

15.31

18.41

18.73

20.27

21.62

24.60

26.15

28.35

32 00

20.50

Transactions related to the Companys restricted stock units are summarized as follows

Outstanding at March 28 2008

Awarded

Forfeited

Released

Outstanding at April 2009

Awarded

Forfeited

Released

Outstanding at April 2010

Awarded

Forfeited

Released

Outstanding at April 2011

clvi her vi

Restricted Stvck Linus

300909

637200

29717
94181

814211

831250

21807
234.039

1389615

630.056

37035
433173

1549463

Outstanding at March 28 2008

Options granted

Options canceled

Options exercised

Number of

Shares

Outstanding at April 2009

Options granted

Options canceled

Options exercised

Weighted Average

Exercise Price Exercise Price

per
Share

per
Share

5641225

280800

135700

337.276

Outstanding at April 2010

Options granted

Options canceled

Otutions exercised

5449049

383900

94874
1019899

4.70-- $43.82

19.05--- 27 27

10.73 33.68

4.70-- 22.03

5.03- 43.82

23.66-- 29.45

5.03-- 43 82

5.03 30.74

5.03- 33.68

39.21-- 41 52

8.94 33.68

503- 33.68

Outstanding at April 2011

19.63

21.04

24.86

10.73

20.12

29 05

29.06

19 06

20 90

41.26

2740

19.60

4718176

266250

20543
1124415

503$41.52 22.66

Weighted Average

Nurrriber Remaining Ovvtractval Weighted Average

Outstanding Life-Years Exercise Price

-j

All restricted stock units awarded under the Companys stock plans have an exercise price equal to zero



NOTE

SHARES USED IN COMPUTING DILUTED NET INCOME PER SHARE

Fiscal Years Ended

in thousands

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

Common shares outstanding used in calculating basic net income per share attributable to

ViaSat Inc common stockholders

Options to purchase common stock as determined by application of the treasury stock method

Restricted stock units to acquire common stock as determined by application of the treasury

stock method

Contingently issuable shares in connection with certain terms of the lAST acquisition agreement

Potentially issuable shares in connection with certain terms of the amended ViaSat 4011k1 Profit

Sharing Plan

Employee Stock Purchase Plan equivalents
________ _______

Shares used in computing diluted net income per stuare attributable to ViaSat Inc

common stockholders

Aprii ApnI

2010 2009

33020 30772

1004 944

272 130

114

32

34839 31884

Antidilutive shares relating to stock options excluded from the calculation were 108637 for the fiscal year ended April

2011 496545 for the fiscal year ended April 2010 and 2771573 for the fiscal year ended April 2009 Antidilutive

shares relating to restricted stock units excluded from the calculation were 4525 for the fiscal year ended April 2011

521 for the fiscal year ended April 2010 and 8490 for the fiscal year ended April 2009

NOTE

INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes includes the following

iscai Years Ended

liii
thousands

Current tax provision benefit

Federal

State

Foreign

Deterred tax
provision

benefit

Federal

State

Oureigii __

April Aprii

2010 2009

64611 13021

16671 3644

199 215

69291 16880

13608 5059
I119t 50051

50 22

12367 10086

5438 6794Total herrefit from provision for iniorne taxes
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Significant components of the Companys net deferred tax assets are as follows

As of April

In thousands 2010

Deferred tax assets

Net
operating loss carrytorwards 86325

Tax credit carrytorwards 28673

Warranty reserve 4363

Accrued compensation 4394

Deferred rent 2582

Inventory reserve 1498

Stock-based compensation 7654

Oontract accounting 2005

Other 8001

Valuation allowance 13074

Total deterred tax assets 132421

Deferred tax liabilities

Property equipment and satellites and intangible assets 70160

Total deterred tax liabilities

____________
70160

Net deferred tax assets 62261

reconciliation of the provision for income taxes to the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate

to income before income taxes is as follows

Oscul Years Ended Aprii April

fin thousands 2010 2009

Tax expense at federal statutory rate 12698 15834

State tax provision net of federal benetit 2259 2545

Tax credits net ot valuation allowance 11408 10017

Manufacturing deduction 920
Non-deductible transaction costs 1435

Non-deductible compensation 377 468

Other 77 11t6

Total provision for income taxes 5438 6794

As of April 2011 the Company had federal and state research credit carryforwards of approximately $42.3 million and

$46.1 million respectively which begin to expire in fiscal year 2027 and fiscal year 2018 respectively and federal and

state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $211.9 million and $278.8 million respectively which begin to

expire in fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2012 respectively

The Company recognizes excess tax benefits associated with share-based compensation to stockholders equity only when

realized When assessing whether excess tax benefits relating to share-based compensation have been realized the

Company follows the with-and-without approach excluding any indirect effects of the excess tax deductions Under this

approach excess tax benefits related to share-based compensation are not deemed to be realized until after the utilization

of all other tax benefits available to the Company During fiscal year 2011 the Company realized $1.3 million of such

excess state tax benefits and accordingly recorded corresponding credit to additional paid in capital As of
April

2011 the Company had $9.6 million of unrealized excess tax benefits associated with share-based compensation These

tax benefits will be accounted for as credt to additional paid-in capital if and when reahzxtd rather than reduction of

the provision for income taxes

In accordance with the authoritative guidance for income taxes ASC 740 net deterred tax assets are reduced by valua

tion allowance if based on all the available evidence it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will

not be realized valuation allowance of $12.7 million at April 2011 and $13.1 million at April 2010 has been estab

lished
relating to state net operating loss carryforwards and research credit carryforwards that based on managements

estimate of future taxable income attributable to certain states and generation of additional tesearch credits are considered

more likely than not to expire unused

If the Company has an Ownership Change as defined under Internal Revenue Code Secticin 382 it may have an annual

limitation on the utilization of its net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards
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On March 31 2007 the Company adopted the provisions of the authoritative guidance for accounting for uncertainty in

income taxes ASC 740

The following table summarizes the activity related to the Companys unrecognized tax benefits

In thousands

Balance beginning ot tiscal year

Increases related to current
year

tax positions

Increase decrease related to prior year tax positions

Statute expirations

Settlements

Balance end of fiscal
year

As of April

2011

31759

4740

1819

303

33015

As at April As of April

2010 2009

37917 30691

3031 8880

2058 717

3452 9371

3679
__________

31759 37917

Of the total unrecognized tax benefits at April 2011 approximately $26.1 million would reduce the Companys annual

effective tax rate if recognized subject to valuation allowance consideration

Included in the balance at April 2011 are $1.4 million of tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain

but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting

other than interest and penalties the disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the annual effective

tax rate but would accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period

In the next twelve months it is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by

approximately $2.5 million as resLilt of the expiration of the statute of limitations or settlements with tax authorities for

previously filed tax returns

The Company is subject to periodic audits by domestic and foreign tax authorities By statute the Companys U.S federal

returns are subject to examination by the IRS for fiscal years 2008 through 2010 Additionally tax credit carryovers that

were generated in prior years and utilized in these years may also be subect to examination by the IRS In September

2010 the IRS commenced an examination of our fiscal year 2009 federal income tax return Subsequently the IRS added

our fiscal year 2010 income tax return to the examination With few exceptions fiscal years 2007 to 2010 remain open to

examination by state and foreign taxing jurisdictions The Company believes that it has appropriate support for the income

tax positions taken on its tax returns and its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open years based on an assess

ment of many factors including past experience and irsterpretations The Companys policy is to recognize interest expense

and penalties related to income tax matters as component of income tax expense There were no accrued interest or

penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as of April 2011 decrease of $0.5 million of interest and penalties

was recorded in the period ended April 2011

NOTE

ACQUISITIONS

STONEWOOD ACQUISITION

On July 2010 the Company completed the acquisition of all outstanding shares of the parent company of Stonewood

Stonewood is leader in the design manutacture and delivery of data at rest encryption products and services Stonewood

products are used to encrypt data on computer hard drives so that lost or stolen laptop does not result in the compromise

of classified information or the loss of intellectual property The purchase price of approximately $18.8 million was comprised

of $4.6 million related to the fair value of 144962 shares of the Companys common stock issued at the closing and $14.2

million in cash consideration paid to former Stonewood stockholders The $14.2 million in cash consideration paid to the for

mer Stonewood stockholders less cash acquired of $0.7 million resulted in net cash outlay of approximately $13.5 million

In accordance with the authoritative guidance for business combinations ASC 805 the Company allocated the purchase

price of the acquired company to the net tangible assets and intangible assets acquired based upon their estimated fair

values Under the authoritative guidance for business combinations acquisition-related transaction costs and acquisition

related restructuring charges are not included as components of consideration transferred but are accounted for as

expenses in the period in which the costs are incurred Total merger-related transaction costs incurred by the Company

were approximately $0.9 million all of which were incurred and recorded in selling general and administrative expenses

in fiscal year 2011
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The preliminary purchase price allocation of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities based on the estimated fair values

as of July 2010 is as follows

liii ftiousericisl

Current assets 4382

Property and equipment 484

Identifiable intangible assetr 11199

Goodwill 7381

Total assets acquired 23446

Current liabilities 1843
Other ong term liabilities 2.770

Total liabilities assumed 4613

Total purctiase price 18833

Amounts assigned to identifiable intangible assets are being amortized on straight-lirte basis over their estimated useful

lives and are as follows

Prehrninary

Fair Same iimaied Weigi ned

in tiiousandni Average Life

Technology 9026

Customer relationships 1977 10

Non-ccrnpete agreements 196

Total identifiable intangible assets 11199

The intangible assets acquired in the Stonewood business combination were determined in accordance with the authorita

tive guidance for business combinations based on the estimated fair values using valuation techniques consistent with the

market approach and/or income approach to measure fair value The remaining useful lives were estimated based on the

underlying agreements and/or the future economic benefit expected to be received from the assets

The acquisition of Stonewood is beneficial to the Company as it enhances the Companys current encryption security offer

ings within the Companys information assurance products and provides additional solutions in the design manufacture

and delivery of data at rest encryption products and services These benefits and additional opportunities were among the

factors that contributed to purchase price resulting in the recognition of preliminary estimated goodwill which was

recorded within the Companys government systems segment The intangible assets and goodwill recognized are not

deductible for federal income tax purposes The purchase price allocation is preliminary due to pending resolution of cer

tain Stonewood tax attributes During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011 the Company recorded $0.5 milliun adjust

ment to the preliminary purchase price allocation for Stonewood related to pre-acquisition net operating loss carryovers

reducing the Companys government systems segment goodwill with corresponding adjustment to deferred tax liabilities

The consolidated financial statements include the operating results of Stonewood from the date of acquisition Pro forma

results of operations have not been presented because the effect of the acquisition was insignificant to the financial state

ments for all periods presented

WILOBLUE ACQUISITION

On December 15 2009 the Company completed the acquisition of all outstanding shares of WildBlue privately held pro

vider of broadband internet service delivering two-way broadband internet access via satellite in the contiguous United

States The purchase price of approximately $574.6 million was comprised primarily of $131.9 million related to the fair

value of 4286250 shares of the Companys common stock issued at the closing date and $442.7 million in cash consider

ation The $442.7 million in cash consideration paid to the former WildBlue stockholders less cash and restricted cash

acquired of $64.7 million resulted in net cash outlay of approximately $378.0 million As of April 2010 all of the

-J acquired restricted cash had become unrestricted Total merger-related transaction costs incurred by the Company related

to WildBlue acquisition were approximately $8.7 million all of which were incurred and recorded in selling general and

administrative expenses in fiscal year 2010



The purchase price allocation of the acquired assets and assumed liabilthes based on the estimated fair

values is as follows

in thousands

Current assets 108672

Property equipment and satellites 378263

Identifiable intangible assets 82070

Goodwill 9809

Deterred income taxes 22693

Other assets
___________ ________________ ________________________________________________

t969

Total assets acquired 601476

Current liabilities 19689
Other long term liabilities

._________ ____________________________________________________
7168

Total liabilities assumed
_____________ ___________ _____________________________

Total purchase price 574619

Amounts assigned to identifiable intangible assets are being amortized on straight-line basis over their estinwted useful

lives and are as follows

Fair Vaise strmated Weighted

Sn thousands Average Lrfe

Trade name 5680

Customer relationships --retail 39840

Customer relationstsps-wholesale 27950

Satellite co-location rights
_________

8600 10

Total identifiable intangie assets 82070

The intangible assets acquired in the WildBlue business combination were determined in accordance with the authoritative

guidance for business combinations based on the estimated fair values using valuation techniques consistent with the mar

ket approach income approach and/or cost approach to measure fair value The remaining useful lives were estimated

based on the underlying agreements and/cir the future economic benefit expected to be received from the assets Under

the terms of the co-location right agreement the Company has certain option periods that begin in approximttely 10 years

based upon the life of Anik F2 Ka-Band Payload

The acquisition of WildBlue is beneficial to the Company as it is expected to enable the Company to integrate the extensive

bandwidth capacity of its ViaSat-1 satellite into WildBlues existing distribution and tulfillment resources which are expected

to reduce initial service costs and improve subscriber growth These benefits and additional opportunities were among the

factors that contributed to purchase price resulting in the recognition of goodwill which was recorded within the

Companys satellite services segment The intangible assets and goodwill recognized are not deductible for federal income

tax purposes During tiscal year 2011 the Company recorded $0.4 million adjustment to the final purchase price alloca

tion for WildBlue primarily related to
pre-acquisitiort net operating loss carryovers increasing the Companys satellite ser

vices segment goodwill with corresponding adjustment to deferred tax assets

The consolidated financial statements include the operating results of WildBlue from the date of acquisition During fiscal

year 2010 since the acquisition date the Company recorded approximately $63.4 million in revenue and $0.4 million of

net income with respect to the WildBlue business in the Companys consolidated statements of operations
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Unaudited Pro Forma Financial information

The unaudited financial information in the table below summarizes the combined results of operations for the Company

and WildBlue on pro forma basis as though the companies had been combined as of the beginning of the related fiscal

years The pro forma financial information is presented for informational purposes only and may not be indicative of the

results of operations that would have been achieved if the acquisition had taken place at the beginning ot the related

fiscal years The pro forrna financial information for fiscal years 2010 and 2009 include the business combination

accounting effect on historical WildBlue revenue elimination of the historical ViaSat revenues and related costs of

revenues derived from sales of CPE units to WildBlue amortization and depreciation charges from acquired intangible and

tangible assets the difference between WildBlues and ViaSats historical interest expense/interest income due to ViaSats

new capitalization structure as result of the acquisition related tax effects and adjustment to shares outstanding for

shares issued for the acquisition

Fiscai Years Ended AprH AprH

In thnrjsarrd except per share data 2OlCi 2009

Totai reaenues 818505 792241

Net income attrrbutabie to ViaSat Inc 30792 4921

Basic net income per share attributabie to ViaSat inc common stockboiders 0.85 0.14

Diluted net income per share attributable to ViaSat Inc common stockholders 0.81 0.14

NOTE 10

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company is sponsor of voluntary deferred compensation plan under Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code

which was amended during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009 Under the amended plan the Company may make dis

cretionary contributions to the plan which vest over six years The Companys discretionary matching contributions to the

plan are based on the amount of employee contributions and can be made in cash or the Companys common stock at the

Companys election Subsequent to the fiscal year-end the Company elected to settle the discretionary contributions liabil

ity in stock Based on the year-end common stock closing price the Company would issue 161865 shares of common

stock at this time Discretionary contributions accrued by the Company as of April 2011 and April 2010 amourtted to

$6.3 million and $5.2 million respectively

NOTE 11

COMMITMENTS
In January 2008 the Company entered into several agreements with Space Systems/Loral Inc SS/L Loral Space

Communications Inc fLoral and Telesat Canada related to the Companys anticipated high-capacity satellite system

Under the satellite construction contract with SS/L the Company purchased ViaSat-1 new high-capacity Ka-band spot-

beam satellite designed by the Company and currently under construction by SS/L for approximately $209.1 million subject

to purchase price adjustments based on satellite performance The total cost of the satellittt is $246.0 million but as part

of the satellite purchase arrangements Loral executed separate contract with SS/L whereby Loral is purchasing the

Canadian beams on the ViaSat-1 satellite for approximately $36.9 million 1551 of the total satellite cost The Company has

also entered into beam sharing agreement with Loral whereby has agreed to reimburse the Company for 15% of the

total costs associated with launch and launch insurance which is estimated to be approximately $22.5 million and in-orbit

insurance and satellite operating costs post launch On March 2011 Loral entered into agreements with Telesat Canada

pursuant to which assigned to Telesat Canada and Telesat Canada assumed from Loral all of Lorals rights and oblige-

dons with respect to the Canadian beams on ViaSat-1

In November 2008 the Company entered into launch services agreement with Ariariespace to procure launch services

for ViaSat-1 at cost estimated to be $107.8 million depending on the mass of the satellite at launch In March 2009 the

Company substituted ILS International Launch Services Inc ILS for Arianespace as the primary provider of launch

services for ViaSat-1 anti accordingly the Company entered into contract for launch services with ILS to procure launch

services for ViaSat-1 at an estimated cost of approximately $80.0 million subject to certain adjustments

On May 2009 the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Launch Services Agreement with Arianespace

whereby Arianespace has agreed to perform certain launch services to maintain the launch capability for ViaSat-1 should

the need arise or for launch services of future ViaSat satellite launch prior to December 2015 This amendment and

restatement also provides for certain cost adjustments depending on fluctuations in foreign currencies mass of the satellite

launched and launch period timing



The Company has various other purchase commitments under satellite capacity agreements which are used to provide sat

ellite networking services to its customers for future minimum payments of $18.7 million $12.1 million $12.3 million and

$0.9 million in fiscal years 2012 2013 2014 and 2015 respectively with no further commitments thereafter

The Company leases office and other facilities under non-cancelable operating leases with initial terms ranging from one

to fifteen years which expire between fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2022 and provide for pre-negotiated fixed rental

rates during the terms of the lease Certain of the Companys facilities leases contain option provisions which allow for

extension of the lease terms

For operating leases minimum lease payments including minimum scheduled rent increases are recognized as rent

expense on straight-line basis over the lease term as that term is defined in the authoritative guidance for leases ASC

840 including any option periods considered in the lease term and any periods during which the Company has use of the

property but is not charged rent by landlord rent holiday Leasehold improvement incentives paid to the Company by

landlord are recorded as liability and amortized as reduction of rent expense over the lease term Total rent expense

was $17.1 million $14.5 million and $12.5 million in fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Future minimum lease payments are as follows

Eiscai Years Ending

in thousands

2012 16938

2013 15525

2014 15418

2015 14394

2016 13563

Thereafter 42018

117856

NOTE 12

CONTINGENCIES

The Company is involved in
variety of claims suits investigations and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of busi

ness including actions with respect to intellectual property claims breach of contract claims labor and employment

claims tax and other matters Although claims suits investigations and proceedings are inherently uncertain and their

results cannot be predicted with certainty the Company believes that the resolution of its current pending matters will not

have material adverse effect on its business financial condition results ot operations or liquidity

U.S government agencies including the Defense Contract Audit Agency DCAA and others routinely audit and review

contractors performance on government contracts indirect rates and pricing practices and compliance with applicable

contracting and procurement laws regulations and standards They also review the adequacy of the contractors compli

ance with government standards for its accounting and management internal control systems including control environ

ment and overall accounting system general information technology system budget and planning system purchasing

system material management and accounting system compensation system labor system indirect and other direct costs

system billing system and estimating system

Government audits and reviews may conclude that the Companys practices are not consistent with applicable laws and

regulations and result in adjustments to contract costs and mandatory customer refunds Such adjustments can be applied

retroactively which could result in significant customer refunds penalties and sanctions against the Company including

withholding of payments and increased government scrutiny that could delay or adversely affect the Companys ability to

receive timely payment on contracts perform contracts or compete for contracts with the U.S Government

The Companys incurred cost audits by the DCAA have not been completed for fiscal year 2003 and subsequent fiscal

years Although the Company has recorded contract revenues subsequent to fiscal year 2002 based upon an estimate of

costs that the Company believes will be approved upon final audit or review the Company does not know the outcome of

any ongoing or future audits or reviews and adjustments and if future adjustments exceed the Companys estimates its

profitability would be adversely affected in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011 based on recent events including

communications with the DCMA changes in the regulatory environment for federal government contractors and the status

of current government audits the Company recorded an additional $5.0 million in contract-related reserves for its estimate

of potential refunds to customers for potential cost adiustments on several multi-year U.S government cost reimbursable

contracts bringing the Companys total reserve to $6.7 million as of April 2011 This reserve is classified as either an

element of accrued liabilities or as reduction of unbilled accounts receivable based on status of the related contracts
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NOTE 13

PRODUCT WARRANTY
The Company provides limited warranties on its products for periods of up to five years The Company records liability

for its warranty obligations when products are shipped or they are included in long-term construction contracts based upon

an estimate of expected warranty costs Amounts expected to be incurred within twelve months are classified as current

liability For mature products the warranty cost estimates are based on historical experience with the particular product

For newer products that do not have history of warranty cost the Company bases its estimates on its experience with the

technology involved and the type of failures that may occur It is possible that the Companys underlying assumptions will

not reflect the actual experience and in that case future adjustments will be made to the recorded warranty obligation

The following table reflects the change in the Companys warranty accrual in fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

Fiscai Years Ended A2r3 Ape

in ihousarid-Y 2010 2009

Balance beginning of perioc 11194 11.679

Change in liability for warranties issued in period 6988 7720

Settlements made in cash or in kindl during the period 16.9741 t82051

Balance end of period 11208 11194

NOTE 14

RESTRUCTURING
In the third quarter of fiscal year 2010 the Company initiated post-acquisition restructuring plan related to the termination

of certain duplicative employee positions upon the acquisition of WildBlue Under the terms of the plan the Company

recorded restructuring charges of approximately $0.5 million and $2.7 million as part of selling general and administrative

expenses within the sateliite services segment during fiscal years 2011 and 2010 respectively The Company recorded no

restructuring charges during fiscal year 2009 As of April 2011 and April 2010 $0.2 million and $0.3 million respec

tively of restructuring charges remained unpaid and recorded in accrued liabilities During fiscal year 2011 and 2010 the

Company paid approximately $0.6 million and $2.4 million of the outstanding restructuring iahilities respectively

NOTE 15

SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Companys reporting segments comprised of the government systems commercial networks and satellite services seg

ments are primarily distinguished by the type of customer and the related contractual requirements The Companys gov

ernment systems segment develops and produces network-centric P-based secure government commurucations systems

products and solutions The more regulated government environment is subject to unique contractual requirements and

possesses economic characteristics which differ from the commercial networks and satellite services segments The

Companys commercial networks segment develops and produces variety of advanced end-to-end satellite communica

tion systems and ground networking equipment and products The Companys satellite services segment complements both

the government systems and commercial networks segments by providing wholesale arid retail satellite-based broadband

internet services in the United States via the Companys satellite and capacity agreements as well as managed network

services for the satellite communication systems of the Companys consumer enterprise and mobile broadband customers

The Companys satellite services segment includes the Companys acquired WildBlue business and the Companys ViaSat-1

satellite-related activities The Companys segments are determined consistent with the way management currently orga

nizes and evaluates financial information internally for making operating decisions and assessing performance

As discussed further in Note included in the government systems segment operating protit for fiscal year 2011 is an $8.5

million forward loss recorded during the first quarter of fiscal year 2011 on government satellite communications program

As discussed in Note also included in the government systems segment operating profit for fiscal year 2011 is an addi

tional $5.0 million in contract related reserves for potential cost adjustments on several multi-year U.S government cost

reimbursable contracts which resulted in decrease to revenues and earnings The Companys satellite services segment

operating profit for fiscal year 2011 reflects $5.2 million benefit to cost of service revenues related to WildBlue satellite

capacity contract liability acquired and release of future payment liabilities related thereto

cc

cc



Fiscal Years Ended

tIn thousands

Revenues

Government Systems

Commercial Networks

Satellite Services

Elimination of tersegment revenues

Total revenues

Operating profits losses

Government Systems

Commercial Networks

Satellite Services

Elimination of intersegment operating profits
________

Segment operating profit before corporate and amortization

Corporate

Amortization of acquired intangible assets

Income from operations
_________

688080 628179

07019

63

397g

52500 53104

9494 18822

43010 44287

liv thousands

Segmertt assets

Governrnertt Systems

Commercial Networks

Satellite Services

Total segment assets

Corporate assets

Apri April

2010 2009

1086 1088

4629 7734

3779

Is__9494$

AprIl

2011

22819

13315

9385

45520

95053

Net acquired intangible assets and goodwill included in segment assets as of April 2011 and April 2010

were as follows

an
an

April April

2010 2009

385151

227120

75809

388656

230828

8695

55720

609
9305

lin thousands

Amortization of acquired intangible assets by segment for the fiscal years ended April 2011 April 2010 and

April 2009 was as follows

Government Systems

Commercial Networks

Satellite Services

Total amortization of acquired intangible assets

Assets identifiable to segments include accounts receivable unbifed accounts receivable inventory acquirod intangible

assets and goodwill Segment assets as of April 2011 and April 2010 were as follows

Total assets

Apni

2010

168703

146990

107919

___________I

423612

869940

LWLIL4 $1293552

in limsusands

Net Acquired intangible Assets

Goverrimeitt Systems

Coinmercial Networks

Satellite Services

Total

Gooc.wiii

April

2011

11157

5391
65341

81889

April

2010

1708

9389

78292

89.389

April

2011

30023

43700

9809

83532

Aprt

2010

22161

43.461

9.402

75024



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT

Revenue information by geographic area for the fiscal years ended April 2011 April 2010 and April 2009

was as follows

Fiscal Years Ended
April April

Yr thousands 2010 2009

United States 554.522 528342

Europe Middle East and Africa 90838 49024

Asia Pacific 25293 30716

North America other than Urefed States 9026 14.840

Latin America 8401 5257

Total 688080 628179

The Company distinguishes revenues from external customers by geographic area based on customer location

The net book value of long-lived assets located outside the United States was $7.9 million and $4.4 million at April 2011

and April 2010 respectively

NOTE 16

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Michael Targoff director of the Company since February 2003 currently serves as the Chief Executive Officer and the

Vice Chairman of the board of directors of Loral the parent of SSIL and is also director of Telesat Holdings Inc joint

venture company formed by Loral and the Public Sector Pension Investment Board to acquire Telesat Canada irt October

2007 John Stenbit director of the Company since August 2004 also currently serves on the board of directors of Loral

In Jaruary 2008 the Company entered into satellite construction contract with SS/L under which the Companry

purchased new high-capacity Ka-band spot-beam satellite ViaSat-1 designed by the Company and currently under

construction by SS/L for approximately $209.1 million subject to purchase price adjustments based on satellite perfor

mance In addition the Company entered into beam sharing agreement with Loral whereby Loral is responsible for con

tributing 15% of the total costs estimated at approximately $57.6 million associated with the ViaSat-1 satellite project The

Companys purchase of the ViaSat-1 satellite from SS/L was approved by the disinterested rriembers of the Companys

Board of Directors after determination by the disinterested members of the Companys Board that the terms and condi

tions of the purchase were fair to and in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders On March 2011 Loral

entered into agreements with Telesat Canada pursuant to which Loral assigned to Telesat Canada and Telesat Canada

assumed from Loral all of Lorals rights and obligations with respect to the Canadian beams on ViaSat-1

During the fiscal years ended April 2011 April 2010 and April 2009 under the satellite construction contract the

Company paid $25.0 million $62.9 million and $92.7 million respectively to SS/L and had no payable to SS/L as of April

2011 and $3.8 million payable to SS/L as of April 2010 During the fiscal years ended April 2011 April 2010 and

April 2009 the Company also received $8.2 million $2.6 million and $0.9 million respectively from SS/L under the

beam sharing agreement with Loral Accounts receivable due from SS/L under the beam sharing agreement with Loral were

less than $0.1 million and $3.8 million as of April 2011 and April 2010 respectively

From time to time the Company enters into various contracts in the ordinary course of business with SS/L and Telesat

Canada Under contract with SS/L the Company recognized $3.3 million in revenue during fiscal year 2011 and received

$3.9 million of cash during fiscal year 2011 During fiscal years 2010 and 2009 the Company recognized no revenue and

had no cash receipts related to contract with SS/L Accounts receivable due under contract with SS/L was $0.8 million

as of April 2011 and there was no accounts receivable outstanding as of April 2010 Ccillections in excess of revenues

and deferred revenues related to contract with SS/L were $1.4 million and $0.8 million as of April 2011 and April

2010 respectively The Company recognized an immaterial amount of revenue related to Telesat Canada for the fiscal years

ended April 2011 and April 2010 and approximately $2.0 million for the fiscal year ended April 2009 The

Company received $1.2 million $1.9 million and $2.5 million respectively from Telesat Canada during the fiscal years

ended April 2011 April 2010 and April 2009 Accounts receivable due from Telesat Canada as of April 2011 and

April 2010 were an immaterial amount and $0.9 million respectively The Company also recognized $2.2 million and

$2.1 million of expense related to Telesat Canada for the fiscal years ended April 2011 and April 2010 respectively

and no material amounts for the fiscal year ended April 2009 During the fiscal years ended April 2011 and April

2010 the Company paid $7.2 million and $2.1 million respectively to Telesat Canada There were no material amounts

paid to Telesat Canada during the fiscal year ended April 2009 All other amounts related to SS/L and Telesat Canada

excluding activities under the ViaSat-1 related satellite contracts were not material



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT AND SUBSIDIARY GUARANTORS

On October 22 2009 the Company issued $275.0 million in principal amount of Notes in private placement to institu

tional buyers The Notes were exchanged in May 2010 for substantially identical Notes that had been registered with the

SEC The Notes are jointly and severally guaranteed on full and unconditional basis by each of the Guarantor Subsidiaries

which are 100% owned by the Company The indenture governing the Notes limits among other things the Companys and

its restricted subsidiaries ability to incur assume or guarantee additional debt issue redeemable stock and preferred

stock pay dividends make distributions or redeem or repurchase capital stock prepay redeem or repurchase subordi

nated debt make loans and investments grant or incur liens restrict dividends loans or asset transfers from restricted

subsidiaries sell or otherwise dispose of assets enter into transactions with affiliates reduce the Companys satellite insur

ance and consolidate or merge with or sell substantially all of their assets to another person

The following supplemental financial information sets forth on condensed consolidating basis the balance sheets state

ments of operations and statements of cash flows for the Company as Issuing Parent Company the Guarantor

Subsidiaries the non-guarantor subsidiaries and total consolidated Company and subsidiaries as of April 2011 and April

2010 and for the fiscal years ended April 2011 April
2010 and April 2009

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS OF APRIL 2011

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payabie

Accrued liabWties

Current portion of other iong-terrn debt

Total current liabilities

Senior Notes due 2016 net

Other long-term debt

intercompany payabies

Other liabilities

Totai Habilities

Equity

ViaSat Inc stockholders equity

Total ViaSat lie stockholders eqLuty

Nencontreiing interest in subsidiary

34867 5226

1743

11945 26551
4321 3057

40.931 20228 26551

NOTE 17

on

us

in thousands

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable net

Inventories

Oeterred income taxes

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Consoiidation

issLilng Parent Guarantor Non-Guarantor and Eiimination

Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adiustments Connsiidsted

24347

171183

88542

16428

15236

7600

10644

7484

1723

4745

32196

256582

103410

65341

9686

2246

Tote current ansets 315736

Satellites net 276418

Property and equipment net 122945

Other acquired intangible assets net 6201

Goodwill 63939

lrrvestments in subsidiaries and irriercompany 490288

receivables

Other assets 89834 12922

8543

10062

2932
162

1160

22859

7785

10347

9907
404

40490

191889

403 98555

492 18805

21141

89 370880

533000

1001 233139

81.889

83532

492938 --

552

Total ussets 1365361 482383 51854 $493850
103308

1405748

62465 8164 1083

100749 25.691 4143

116 1012

163330

272296

60203

14606

16464

526899

71712

130583

1128

203423

272296

61946

Total equity

Total liabilities arid equity

838462 441452 31626 471415

838462

1.365361

23842

561507

840 125

4116

844.241

1405748

4116

441452 31626 467299

482383 51854 493850



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS OF APRIL 2010

in thousands

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable net

Inventories

Deferred income faxes

Prepaid expenses and of her current assets

Total current assets

Satellites net

Property and equipment net

Other acquired intangible assets net

Goodwil

Investments in subsidiaries and intercompany

receivables

Other assets

Total assets

71765

85960

157725

271801

oooo --

93.468

16356 7990

599350 28512

Consoiidatiori

and Elimination

Adiustments consolidated

89631

176351

82962

17346

28857

395147

495689
155804

89389

75024

78355

102251

180606

271801

-- 60000

107.973

____________
24395

107973 536802

issuing Porent Guarantor Nen-Guarantnr

company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

66258 16216 7557

160807 11983 3561

75222 6313 1427

16480 866

25457 2504 896

344224 37882 13041

209431 286258

66928 82679 944
10872 78292 225

63940 9279 1805

596313 2324 7654 606291

60812 21070 82499

1352520 517784 30483 607235 $1293552

5920

14602

20522

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Total current liabilities

Senior Notes due 2016 rirrt

Other long-term debt

Intercompany payabes

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

ViaSat Inc stockholders equity

Total ViaSat Inc stockholders equity

Noncontrolling interest in rubnidiary

Total equity

670

1689

2359

14505

49

16913

Total liabilities and equity

753170 489272 13570

753170 489272

1352520 517784

13570

30483

503007 753005

3745 3745

4992621 756750

607235 1293552

or

uJ

or
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in thousands

Revenues

Product revenues

Service revenues

Total revenues

Operating expenses

Cost ot product revenues

Cost of service revenues

Selling genera and administrative

Independent research and developrnnnt

Amortization of acquired intangible assets

Income loss from operations

Other income expense

Interest income

Interest expense

Income loss before irrcome taxes

Provision benefit trots for income axes

Equity in net income loss of consolidated subsedaries

Net income loss

Less Net income loss attributable to rionconfrolling

interest rref of fax

Iosusg Purest Guarastce Non-Guarantor

Csrnpanv Sxbsdares Subsidiaries

505634 5546 16583

53701 215267 10994

559335 220813 27577

375635 8228 9426

34339 121024 6926

104235 50946 9123

27807 924

4672 12954 1783

12647 27661 605

49 375

27612 971
10325 353

ConsoHdatisn

.and Fhsriiratiorr

Adiustmvnts Gsnsaldated

3.825 523938

1694 278268

5519 802206

3344 389945

1666 16L623

39 164265

20 28711

19409

450 39253

323

3154

35422

Os

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 2011
us

of

687

3103

10231

10188
15654

373

373-

450i

492i

15654i

36073 17287 1324 156121 36424

-- --- 309 309

36073 17287 1324 15921 36115Net Income loss attributable to ViaSat Inc



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 2010

Is thousands

Revenues

Product revenues

Service revenues

Total revenues

Operating expenses

Cost of product revenUes

Cost of service revenues

Selling genera and adntittisrafive

Independent research and development

AniortOation of acquired intangible assets

Income loss from peratiurin

Other inconre expense

Interest income

Interest expense

Income loss before income taxes

Provision benefit from for income taxes

Equity in net income loss of consolidated subsidiaries

Net income loss attributable to ViaSat Inc

Cossodatios

ssLn
ng Parent Guararirar Nxn-Gvarastcr and Eiirnirraflon

Company Snhsidiaries Subsiciaries Adjustments Cossalidated

5819t1 907 4065 2809 584074

34.986 62499 7010 489 tO4006

616897 63406 t1075 3298 688.080

405.624 960

23.070 36.937

509931 20957

26961

5.178 3.778

46.133 772

3851 1909 408526

7316 493 66830

2.013 132895

362 27325

538 9.494

.3.005 890 43010

658 12 52 62

7354 52 52 7354

39437 775 3045 890 36277

5.113 308 9/ 5438

2300 2300

467 3062 1410 30839

__________ _____ _______
297 297

32024 467 3062 1707 31136

Net income loss 32024

Less Net income loss attributable to rroncontroling

interest net of tax

-J

on



CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 2009

In thousands

Revenues

Product revenues 590403

Service revenues 27042

Total revenues 617445

Operating expenses

Cost of product revenues 420653

Cost of service revenues 18097

Selling genera and admlnistratlve 96707

Independent research and development 29311

Amortization of acquired intangible assets 8403

corisolidahon

Issuing Parent Guarantor Nos-Gsarantor and Elimination

company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjsstrnents Consoiidated

6128 1189 595342

6364 569 32837

12492 1758 628179

5105 1138 424620

4577 470 22204

1917 98624

390 79 29622

419 -- 8822

84 44287Income loss from operations

Other income expense

Interest income 1325 138 1463

Interest expense 507 509

Income loss before income taxes 45092 220 71 45241

Provision benefit from for income taxes 6791 6794

Equity in net income loss of consolidated subsidiaries 100 100

Net income loss 38401 217 171 38447

Less Net income loss attributable to noncontrolling

interest net of tax 115 116

38401 217 287 $38331

44274

Ln

on

en

Net income loss attributable to ViaSat tic



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 2D11

Csasaiidatkjri

smiiug Parent Gaarastsr Nss-Guurasiiir and Eiirsiiiiatios

Is thousands Company Sabsirtiahes Sebsidiarias Adastrsasts CsnsoHdaiad

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash promoted by used in operating actmdies 57577 112029 19 270 159617

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property epuipmerrt end satefifes net

Cash paid for patents licenses and other assets

Payments related to acquisition of businesses net of

cash acquired

lneestment in subsidiarieb

Not cash used in prosideb by macsting aofiailios

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from line of crodit borromings

Payments on line of credit

Payment of debt issuance costs

Proceeds from issuance of common stock under

equity plans

Purchase of common stock in treasury

locremental faa benefits frnmi stock-based

comperisaf ins

Intercompany long-term financing

Net cash prosided by used in financing actisitios

Effect of escbange rate changes on cash

Net decrease increase in cash and cash equiaalents

Cash and cash equisalents at beginning ut fiscal year

Cash and cash aquiaalenta at end of fiscal
year

152416 54125 2013 270 208285
15942 44 15986

14203 --- 747 --- 13455
726 100 1.73 0105

083287 54026 421 835 237727

40000 --- 40000
40000 -- -- 140000

2775 -- .- 12.775

26398 -- 26398
5880 -- 5880

867 -- -- 867

64889 66619 625 1105

83499 56519 625 1105 18610

359 359

41911 8.6161 1386 .-- 149141

65258 15216 7157 89531

24347 L600 8543 40420

-J

so

or



In thousands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash used in provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from line of credit borrowings

Payments on line ot credit

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt net of

discount

Payment of debt issuance costs

Proceeds from issuance of common stock under

equity plans

Proceeds from common stock issued under public

offering net of issuance costs

Purchase of common stock in treasury

Intercompany long-term financing

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash end cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year

263000

203000

271582

12781

23085

919 134543
13796

377987

7298

4423

5342 519028

263000

203000

271582

12781

23085

100533

-- 10326
4423

4423 432093
529 529

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 2010

Net cash provided by used in operating activities 74032

on

/1

issuing Parent Guarantor hon-Guarantor

Cempany Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

Consolidation

and Ehminaiion

Adiustments Censskdated

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property equipment and safellifes net 121497

Cash paid for patents licenses and other assets 13709
Payments related to acquisition of businesses net of

cash acquired 442700
Change in restricted cash net 31
Investment in subsidiariess 5114

583051

40671 1238 919 $112546

10075 38901
87

64.336 377

7329

691

61590 2909

100533

110326

85354 86045 5114

186045517447

8428

57830

66258

5114

16216 1496 26140

5661 63491

16216 7157 $89631



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 2009

Consohdation

Non-Guarantor and Ernieation

Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property equipment and satellites net 115976
Cash paid for patents licenses and other assets 7921
Payments related to acquisition of businesses net ot

cash acquired 925
Investment in subsidiaries 3267

Net cash used in investing activities 128089
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on line of credit

Proceeds from issuance ot common stock under

aqLxty plans

Purchase of common stock in treasury

Incremental tax benefits from stock-based

compensation

Payment on secured borrowing

Proceeds from sale of stock of majority-owned

subsidiary --- 3371 1871 1500

Intercompany long-term financing 767 1397 2164

Net cash provided by financing activities 2468 4768 4035 3201

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 681 681

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 61245 4401 61685
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 119075 -- 6101 --- 125176

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal
year 57830 5661 63491

issuing Purest Guarantor

Inthousarids company Subsidiaries

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided by used in operating activities 64376 12363 71 61942

Proceeds from line of credit borrowings

71 117194

8028
1289

107

1768 4035

2164 4106

925

126147

10000

110000

6742

667

346

14720

10000

110000

6742

667

346

14720

di

-j
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VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

FOR THE THREE FISCAL YEARS ENDED APRIL 2011

Date

in thossands

Balance March 28 2008

Charged credited to costs and expenses

Deductions

Balance April 2009

Charged credited to costs and expenses

Charged credited to costs and expenses

Charged credited to goodwill

Deductions

Balance April 2011

Allowance for

Doubtfsi Ac ounts

310

377

325

362

416

Deductions 239

Balance April 2010 539

Charged credited to costs and expenses
813

Deductions 859

Balance April 2011

Date Deferred Tax Asset

In thoasands
Valaation Allowance

Balance March 28 2008 969

Ctiarged credited to costs and expenses
1093

Deductions

Balance April 2009 2062

Charged credited to costs and expenses 1306

Charged credited to goodwill 9706

Deductions

Balance April
2010 13074

1445

1.848

14671

Related to the acqaisitioe ot WiIdBlse
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MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY AND

RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol VSAT The following table sets forth

for the periods indicated the range of high and low sales prices of our common stock as reported by Nasdaq

High iow

FISCAL 2010

First Quarter 27.36 20.35

Second Quarter 28.88 23.53

Third Quarter 32.46 28.12

Fourth Quarter 35.13 26.04

FISCAL 2011

First Quarter

Second Quarter

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

As of May 20 2011 there were approximately 1288 holders of record of our common stock substantially greater num
ber of holders of ViaSat common stock are street name or beneficial holders whose shares are held of record by banks

brokers and other financial institutions

DIVIDEND POLICY

To date we have neither declared nor paid any dividends on our common stock We currently intend to retain all future

earnings if any for use in the operation and development of our business and therefore do not expect to declare or pay

any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future Any future determination to pay cash dividends will be

at the discretion of the Board of Directors subject to any applicable restrictions under our debt and credit agreements and

will be dependent upon our financial condition results of operations capital requirements general business condition and

such other factors as the Board of Directors may deem relevant



PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph shows the value of an investment of $100 in cash on March 31 2006 in ViaSats common stock

the NASDAQ Telecommunications Index the NASDAQ Composite Index and the SP 600 SmalICap Index The

graph assumes that all dividends if any were reinvested The stock price performance shown on the graph is based on

historical data and should not be considered indicative of future performance The information contained under this head

ing Performance Graph shall riot be deemed to be soliciting material or to be filed with the SEC or sublect to

Regulation 14A or Regulation 14C or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and shall riot be

deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing of ViaSat except to the extent that ViaSat specifically incorporates it

by reference into document filed under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

i2OO
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USE OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL INFORMATION

To supplement VraSats consolidated financial statements presented in accordance with GAAP ViaSat uses Adjusted

EBITDA measure ViaSat believes is appropriate to enhance an overall understanding of ViaSats past financial

performance and prospects for the future Adjusted EBITDA represents net income loss attributable to ViaSat Inc before

interest taxes depreciation and amortization adjusted to exclude the effects of non-cash stock-based compensation

expenses and acquisition-related expenses We believe Adjusted EBITDA provides useful information to both management

and investors by excluding specific expenses that we believe are not indicative of our core operating results In addition

since we have historically reported non-GAAP results to the investment community we believe the inclusion of non-GAAP

numbers provides consistency in our financial reporting and facilitates comparisons to the companys historical operating

results Further these non-GAAP results are among the primary indicators that management uses as basis for planning

and forecasting in future periods The presentation of this additional information is not meant to be considered in isolation

or as substitute for measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with GAAP reconciliation of specific

adjustments to GAAP results is provided in the table An Itemized Reconciliation Between Net Income AttribLitable to

ViaSat Inc and Adjusted EBITDA contained in this Annual Report

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report including Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

contains forward-looking statements regarding future events and our future results that are subject to the safe harbors cre

ated under the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 These statements are based on current

expectations estimates forecasts and projections about the industries in which we operate and the beliefs and assumptions

of our management We use words such as anticipate believe continue could estimate expect goal intend

may plan project seek should target will would variations of such words and similar expressions to den

fify forward-looking statements In addition statements that refer to projections of earnings revenue costs or other financial

items anticipated growth and trends in our business or key markets future growth and revenues from our products future

economic conditions and performance ant icipated performance of products or services plans objectives and strategies for

future operations and other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements Readers are

cautioned that these forward-looking statements are only predictions and are subject to risks uncertainties and assumptions

that are difficult to predict including those risk factors listed in our most recent reports on Form 10-K 10-Q and 8-K and our

other filings with the SEC Therefore actual results may differ materially and adversely from those expressed in any forward-

looking statements We undertake no oblgxtmon to revise or update any forward-looking statements for any reaxon

if

Mt
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mark Dankberg

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

ViaSat Inc

Dr Robert Johnson

Venture Capital Investor

Allen Lay

Private Investor

Dr Jeffrey Nash

Private Investor

John Stenbit

ANNUAL MEETING

The 2011 Annual Meeting will be held at

ViaSats headquarters located at

6155 El Camirio Real Founders Hall

Carlsbad California 92009

on January 27 2012 at 830 a.m Pacific Time

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

PricewaterhouseCoopers LIP

5375 Mira Sorrenfo Place Suite 300

San Diego California 92121

Private Consultant

Michael Targoff

CEO President and

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

Loral Space Communications Inc

Harvey White

Chairman SHW2 Enterprises

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Mark Dankberg

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Richard Baldridge

President and

Chief Operating Officer

Stephen Estes

Vice PresidentHuman Resources

Kevin Harkenrider

Senior Vice PresidentInfrastructure Operations

Steven Hart

Vice President and

Chief Technical Officer

Keven lippert

Vice President-General Counsel

and Secretary

Mark Miller

Vice President and

Chief Technical Officer

Thomas Moore

Senior Vice President

Ronald Wangerin

Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL

latham Watkins LIP

12636 High Bluff Drive Suite 400
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TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Computershare Investor Services

P.O Box 43078

Providence Rhode Island 02940

312-588-4162

web.queries@computershare.com

www-us.computershare.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS
For investor information financial information

SEC filings and other useful information visit our

website at www.viasat.com To obtain printed

copy of our Form 10-K without charge or to

receive additional copies of this Annual Report

or other financial information please contact our

Investor Relations department at

ViaSat Inc

Attn Investor Relations

6155 El Camino Real

Carlsbad California 92009

760-476-2633

ir@viasat.com
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